
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
FLORIDA SEAPORT TRANSPORTATION 

AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
COUNCIL 

 
Tuesday May 7, 2019 

10:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. 
Teleconference 

Call in #: 605-475-2874  
Access Code: 934 8585 

 
 
 
 

  



 
 
 

TAB 1 
Call to Order 

  



Florida Seaport Transportation and Economic 

Development Council 
 

Canaveral Port Authority ∙ Port Citrus ∙ Port Everglades ∙ Port of Fernandina ∙ Port of Fort Pierce 
Jacksonville Port Authority ∙ Port of Key West ∙ Manatee County Port Authority ∙ PortMiami ∙ Port of Palm Beach  

Panama City Port Authority ∙ Port of Pensacola ∙ Port St. Joe Port Authority ∙ Port St. Pete ∙ Tampa Port Authority  
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity ∙ Florida Department of Transportation 

 
 
 

AGENDA 

May 7, 2019 

10:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. 

Teleconference 

 

1. Call to Order, Chairman’s Welcome and Opening Comments  
 

2. Roll Call   
 

3. Administrative Issues  
a. Approval of the March 27, 2019 Meeting Minutes  
b. Approval of Reallocation of FSTED Program Funds  

 

4. Funding Oppurtunitites  
a. Intermodal Logistics Centers 
b. BUILD Grant 
c. FSTED Grant 
d. DEO Grants  

 

5. Legislative Report  
 

6. Other Issues 
a. Mutual Aid Agreements 
b. New Business 

 

7. Adjournment 
 
 
 



 
 
 

TAB 2 
Roll Call 

  



Florida Seaport Transportation and Economic 

Development Council 
 

Canaveral Port Authority ∙ Port Citrus ∙ Port Everglades ∙ Port of Fernandina ∙ Port of Fort Pierce 
Jacksonville Port Authority ∙ Port of Key West ∙ Manatee County Port Authority ∙ PortMiami ∙ Port of Palm Beach  

Panama City Port Authority ∙ Port of Pensacola ∙ Port St. Joe Port Authority ∙ Port St. Pete ∙ Tampa Port Authority  
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity ∙ Florida Department of Transportation 

 

 

Roll Call 

May 7, 2019 

10:30 a.m. -11:30 a.m. 

    
  
Representative   Organization Designee 

John Murray Port Canaveral  
Randy Oliver Port Citrus  
Glen Wiltshire  Port Everglades David Anderton 
Laura DiBella Port Fernandina  
Stanley Payne Port of Fort Pierce  
Eric Green Jacksonville Port Authority   
Doug Bradshaw Port of Key West  
Carlos Buqueras Manatee County Port Authority   
Juan Kuryla PortMiami  
Manuel Almira Port of Palm Beach  
Wayne Stubbs Panama City Port Authority   
Amy Miller-Chair Port of Pensacola  
Guerry Magidson Port St. Joe  
David Wirth Port St. Pete  
Paul Anderson Tampa Port Authority   
Kenneth Lawson Department of Economic Opportunity  
Kevin Thibault Department of Transportation  
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   

 



 
 
 

TAB 3 
Administrative Issues 

  



 
 
 

TAB 3a 
Approval of March 27, 2019 Meeting 

Minutes  

  



1 

 

MEETING SUMMARY 

 

FLORIDA SEAPORT TRANSPORTATION AND  

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COUNCIL 

 

March 27, 2018 

Hotel Duval 

Tallahassee, Florida 

 
 

 

A meeting of the Florida Seaport Transportation and Economic Development (FSTED) Council was held on March 27, 

at the Hotel Duval in Tallahassee, Florida.  Chairwoman Amy Miller called the meeting to order.  The Assistant 

Secretary called the roll. Members present were: 

 

Mike Poole for John Murray, Canaveral  

David Anderton for Steve Cernak, Everglades 

Laura DiBella, Fernandina 

Stan Payne, Ft. Pierce 

Eric Green, Jacksonville 

Denise Stufflebeam for Carlos Buqueras, Manatee 

Becky Hope for Juan Kuryla, Miami  

Manuel Almira, Palm Beach 

Wayne Stubbs, Panama City 

Amy Miller, Pensacola  

Guerry Magidson, Port St. Joe 

Ram Kancharla for Paul Anderson, Tampa 

Secretary Kevin Thibault, Florida Department of Transportation 

Director Kenneth Lawson, Department of Economic Opportunity 

 

A quorum was present.  Also in attendance were:  

Fran Bohnsack, U.S. DOT 

Justin Ryan, FDOT D2 

Gerard O’Rourke, FDOT CO 

Daniel Fitz-Patrick, FDOT 

Crystal Taylor, FDOT CO    

Jimmy McDonald, CDM Smith/FDOT   

Jim Dubea, Transystems     

Fred Wong, Jaxport 

Basil Binns, Port of Miami 

Clark Merritt, Port of Pensacola 

Jeff Littlejohn, Littlejohn Mann  

John Thorington, Port Tampa Bay 

Diane Luensmann, Canaveral    

Matt McDonald, FPC 

Katie Crofoot, DEO 

Katherine Morrison, DEO 

Ryan Fierst, DEO 

Susan Schwartz, FDOT 

John Miller, Port of Panama City 

Alex King, Port of Panama City 

Abby Lindecamp, Port Manatee 

Doug Wheeler, FPC     

Casey Grigsby, FPC 

Jessie Werner, FPC     

Michael Rubin, FPC

 

Agenda Item 3a, Approval of the Minutes of September 5, 2018 FSTED Council meetings, was taken up.  A motion 

was made by Mr. Kancharla, seconded by Mr. Green, and passed approving the minutes. 

 



2 

 

Agenda Item 3b, SeaCIP Rulemaking. Since the last meeting FSTED and FDOT staff has coordinated with port staff on 

ways to improve the SeaCIP application process and questions. The final changes have been publically noticed for final 

rulemaking approval in order become effective for this year’s FSTED grant application window. Due to the changes in 

the new application language there will be no carry forward applications this year. A motion was made by Mr. 

Kancharla, seconded by Mr. Stubbs, and passed approving the new SeaCIP application language.  

 

Agenda Item 3c, Report on Seaport Environmental Management Committee, was taken up. Mr. Littlejohn consultant 

for the SEMC committee provided an update to the group. The committee continues to monitor the Volkswagen diesel 

emission grant and resulting settlement. The mitigation plan has been developed by the Department of Environmental 

Protection but has not been released for public comment. The first draft is expected to be released this spring. For 

seaports the programs offer an opportunity of the $168 million available for Florida over four years that can be 

extended as long as ten years. Seaports may be able to utilize these funds for upgrading older diesel equipment, 

drainage, tugs, or cargo handling equipment. Governor DeSantis has requested $10 million from the Legislature within 

the FY 19-20 state to match the money coming down. DEP will be the state representative to the trustee charged with 

reviewing and administering the grant. The Environmental Stewardship Initiatives page on the Florida Ports Council 

website has been refreshed with a new mission statement, stories, mitigation activities, and success stories. The site has 

a new feature on the port’s emphasis water quality.  

 

Agenda Item 3d, Report on FSTED Council Security Committee, was taken up. Mr. Rubin provided the members with 

a report on the Security Committee meeting. The Security committee will meet on May 20
th
 at Port Canaveral at this 

time if there is any funding for potential security projects the group will discuss them at this time. Mr. Rubin indicated 

that the security funding allocations are dependent on an annual allocation by the legislature, $2 million is currently in 

proviso language on the Senate side for seaport security funding this year.  

 

Agenda Item 4, Agency Reports, was taken up. The Council welcomed the new Director of the Florida Department of 

Economic Opportunity Ken Lawson and Secretary of the Florida Department of Transportation Kevin Thibault to the 

FSTED Council. Director Lawson provided an update on DEO and the agencies direction moving forward. The agency 

will focus on three key initiatives: ensuring citizens impacted by disasters receive assistance that is transparent and 

efficient; effectively utilizing the tools available within state government; and streamlining government operations. 

Secretary Thibault provided an update on FDOT and that moving forward the agency will continue to focus on safety, 

congestion relief, and technology.  

 

Agenda Item 5, Reports and Studies, was taken up. Ms. Grigsby then provided the members with an update on the 

development of the FSTED Seaport Mission Plan for 2019. The current date for roll-out of the final plan will be May. 

Preliminary numbers for the 2018 seaport system at a glance indicate that cargo tonnage, TEU’s handled, cargo 

passengers, and value of water-borne trade all had positive growth for 2018 despite Hurricane Michael and new tariffs 

placing undue burdens on some of our ports.  Ms. Grigsby then discussed the development of an Economic Impact 

Study for 2020. The Council has worked with contract consultants to prepare an economic impact report in the past. We 

have used John Martin the past couple of times because he has already worked with several seaports to conduct 

individual economic impact statements, and he could then produce a statewide economic impact report for a small 

additional fee. This year the timing has not aligned with to complete it in the spring. Staff indicated the timeline in the 

past has conflicted with CLIA’s annual report that is bi-annual, and that moving forward we will take that into account 

with the timing of our product to ensure we have the latest cruise figures included.  A discussion was held about the 

FSTED Council doing an aggregated statewide Florida Economic Study every three years, by one consulting company, 

with representatives from the different ports on the RFP selection committee. The Economic Impact Study would 

provide a statewide report, data, in addition to individual reports for each of the ports. This would reduce the overall 

costs of creating this type of study across the state. The report would be paid for out of the data line item of the FSTED 

budget. The ports each indicated that they would like members of their staff to assist on the RFP selection committee.  

 

Ms. Grigsby informed the member’s staff was currently working with a partner association to conduct a research paper 



3 

 

on alternative fuels. The paper will focus on how we can potentially diversify Florida's economy through integrating 

LNG, through more of our transportation and multi-modal structure. In addition Littlejohn, Mann, and Associates are 

compiling a resiliency paper that will focus on the proactive polices, procedures, and best practices the ports have in 

place as they relate to resiliency planning.  

 

Agenda Item 6, Legislative Report, was taken up. Mr. Rubin stated that the new Regular Session 2019 brought entire 

new Cabinet and new leadership in the Florida Legislature. As was just discussed, the importance of educating the new 

leadership in Florida is more important this year than in the past. The work program has been fully funded as of the last 

recommendation.  

 

Agenda Item 7, Program Funding was taken up. Ms. Grigsby provided the members with a new one-pager educational 

marketing material detailing the basics of the FSTED and FSTED Security Program.  

 

Agenda Item 7a, Discussion and Review of Seaport Funding Spend Downs, was taken up. Chairwoman Miller 

reminded the members that a discussion of spend downs and any issues ports may be facing with respect to project 

funding was an important part of FSTED Council meetings. Chairwoman Miller directed the members to the chart in 

the materials concerning spend downs, and requested the ports to provide the Council with the status of projects that 

had funding that was FY '16-'17 or older or funds that are getting ready to expire in 2019. Manatee’s cold warehouse 

storage and berth rehab have both executed new PTGA’s and requested extensions. Panama City had a project with 

funds allocated in FY 2013-14 with some funds still left, and Mr. Stubbs stated that the project was in the completion 

stage with final draw-down expected by the end of the year. Pensacola had a project with initial funding in FY 2012-13, 

and Ms. Miller stated that the original allocation was revised in FY 2016-17 with a new expiration date in FY 2020 and 

a bid on the project was set to go out for construction early next year. Palm Beach had a project for Tropical Shipping 

reefer line, and Mr. Almira stated that the project was now part of an overall upland cargo improvement project and the 

entire project should be completed within a year. Everglades indicated that the last reimbursement for the remaining 

balance of the turning notch was submitted, and the full draw down should be complete within the next few weeks. Slip 

1, berths 9, and 10 are still in the design phases. The project is proving to be extremely complex as the manifold system 

needs to be reconstructed prior to the berth work, but design is progressing. Ft. Pierce is at 90 percent completion on the 

design drawings of Fisherman’s Wharf, and will be having internal discussions within the next few weeks on next steps 

of the project. Tampa had a project at Hookers Point, and Mr. Kancharla stated that project was on schedule to be 

completed next year.  

 

Agenda Item 7b, Approval of Reallocation of FSTED Program Funds, was taken up. Chairwoman Miller directed the 

members to the written request in their materials from the Canaveral Port Authority and Port of Fort Pierce for the 

reallocation of funds. Mr. Poole stated that the port was requesting the reallocation of $34,090 of remaining funds from 

the North Cargo Berth 5 and 6 project that is complete to the Cruise Terminal Expansion project. A motion was made 

by Mr. Kancharla, seconded by Ms. Hope, and passed unanimously to approve the reallocation. Mr. Payne stated that 

the port is seeking to demolish a very old packing house on the Indian River terminal that is in a state of disrepair to 

create space for a planned private investment he reallocation amount will be $298,073 and will begins immediately. A 

motion was made by Mr. Kancharla, seconded by Mr. Almira, and passed unanimously to approve the reallocation. 

 

Agenda Item 8, Mutual Aid Agreements, was taken up. At the recommendations of Chairwoman Miller and Mr. 

Anderson staff created two different Mutual Aid Agreements, a short and long version. The purpose is to expedite the 

mobilization of port personnel, equipment, and resources to assist fellow ports in the case of a disaster or emergency, 

while facilitating FEMA reimbursement of those expenses. The ports discussed that they would review the two 

agreements with staff, and finalize which would be best suited for the group at the May 7
th
 teleconference.   

 

The meeting was adjourned at 2:11 p.m.   

 

 



 
 
 

TAB 3b 
Approval of Reallocation of FSTED 

Program Funds   













RECOMMENDED FSTED PROGRAM RE-ALLOCATION FOR FY 18/19

Port Project
 Amount 

Requested 

Recommended FY 19/20 

FSTED Allocation

Key West Mole Pier Passenger Enhancements $200,000 $200,000

Total $200,000

Manatee Intermodal Container Facility - Phase II $5,250,000 $1,250,000

Total $1,250,000

Fernandina Pier Maintenance and Improvements $1,350,000 $350,000

Total $350,000

Total $1,800,000

Port Manatee $1,250,000

Port Fernandina $350,000

Port of Key West $200,000

Total $1,800,000



 
 

 
 

 
 

TAB 4 
Funding Opportunities  

  



 
 

 
TAB 4a  

Intermodal Logistics Centers 
  



WHAT IS AN ILC?

ELIGIBILITY

2019-2020 FUNDING CYCLE

INTERMODAL LOGISTICS CENTER (ILC) 
INFRASTRUCTURE SUPPORT PROGRAM

FDOT FMO MISSION

FUNDING PROFILE

A facility, or group of facilities, serving as a point 
of transfer of freight in a specific area physically 
separated from a seaport where activities relating 
to transport, logistics, goods distribution, 
consolidation, or value-added activities are carried 
out and whose activities and services are designed 
to support or be supported by conveyance or 
shipping through one or more seaports (Florida 
Statute 311.101).

•	 State, local or private entities that have gained 
local support and funding for their project.

•	 The project must adhere to the statute and rule 
to be eligible for funding. 

•	 The project must show a community benefit and 
demonstrate freight movement improvements 
within the affected region.

At least $5 million shall be made available from the 
State of Transportation Trust Fund for the program. 
FDOT shall include projects proposed to be funded 
under its Work Program. Projects are eligible to 
receive a maximum of $2.5 million, which must be 
matched by the entity. Past projects have included 
infrastructure enhancements such as: 
•	 Road Construction
•	 Rail Expansion
•	 Dock Improvements 

FDOT Freight and Multimodal Operations (FMO) 
Office will provide solutions to foster the successful 
development of Intermodal Logistic Centers that 
enhance the connectivity, reliability, and safety of 
trade flows and promote Florida’s global economic 
competitiveness network.

FOR MORE INFO: FreightMovesFlorida.com

2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
APRIL 1 MAY 31 JUN 1-JUN 30 JULY 8 J U LY  3 1

Application Request Opens Application Deadline FDOT & DEO Review Applications Recommendations made  
to the FDOT Secretary

Projects Awarded

CONTACT: Laura Miller  |  850.414.4528  |  ILCSupport@dot.state.fl.us



 
 
 
 
 

TAB 4b 

BUILD Grant 
  



From: Casey Grigsby
To:

Subject: FY19 BUILD NOFO
Date: Thursday, April 18, 2019 7:45:00 AM
Attachments: FY19 BUILD NOFO.pdf

Good afternoon FSTED Council & staff,
 
Attached is the FY19 BUILD grant program Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO), as well as an analysis of the grant from our partners at CAGTC. You can also
find the NOFO online here. Applications are due July 15, 2019. Per the FY19 omnibus, USDOT is required to make the awards no later than 270 days after
the passage of the omnibus (February 15, 2019) so we should see selections announced by November 12, 2019.
 
Upcoming BUILD Webinars hosted by USDOT:
USDOT will host five webinars on the BUILD program:

1. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – All Applicants
a. Tuesday, April 30, 3-5pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8

2. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – Tribal and Rural Applicants
a. Thursday, May 2, 2-4pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8

3. Preparing a Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for a BUILD Application
a. Tuesday, May 7, 2-4pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8

4. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – All Applicants
a. Thursday, May 9, 2-4pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8

5. Preparing a Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for a BUILD Application
a. Tuesday, May 14, 305pm Eastern
b. Register here: h

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8

 
More details about these webinars can be found online here: https://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/outreach
 
The Florida Ports Council will be happy to assist in preparing letters of support, and providing any additional resources you may need. If you would like a
letter of support, please provide the project’s background information to the Florida Ports Council by July 1, 2019. We hope this information proves to be
useful to our ports and staff. Please reach out to us with any questions, concerns, or assistance you may need.
 
Casey Erin Grigsby
Florida Ports Council
VP of Programs & Planning
 

From: Katie Cross <kcross@blakey-agnew.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, April 17, 2019 12:42 PM
Subject: CAGTC: Analysis of FY19 BUILD NOFO
 
CAGTC Members,
 
CAGTC staff has conducted a brief analysis of the FY19 BUILD Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO), please find it below. Additionally, I’ve included
information on upcoming BUILD webinars.
 
Significant changes
The FY19 omnibus, signed into law on February 15, 2019, mandated that the FY19 round of BUILD awards feature a 50-50 split between urban and rural
awards and this NOFO follows that direction, indicating that “not more than 50 percent of funds will be awarded to projects located in urban and rural areas,
respectively.” (The FY18 NOFO mandated that at least 30% of funds go to rural areas). Additionally, as you may recall, recent NOFOs from USDOT have
included the cost share of a project as well as the project’s ability to generate non-federal revenue as selection criteria. The FY19 omnibus mandated USDOT
not use these as criteria in this round and as such, those criteria have been removed from the NOFO. Finally, the FY19 omnibus made up to $15 million of the

mailto:/O=MEX05/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CASEY.GRIGSBYAAE
mailto:Alindecamp@portmanatee.com
mailto:aking@portpanamacityusa.com
mailto:MatosA@stlucieco.org
mailto:alcu@miamidade.gov
mailto:AMiller@cityofpensacola.com
mailto:Basil.Binns@miamidade.gov
mailto:rebecca.dicks@jaxport.com
mailto:Becky.Hope@miamidade.gov
mailto:Beth.McCague@jaxport.com
mailto:baker@portofpalmbeach.com
mailto:cbuqueras@portmanatee.com
mailto:Alicia.Carroll@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:Casey.Grigsby@FlaPorts.org
mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org
mailto:cmerritt@cityofpensacola.com
mailto:dowens@miamidade.gov
mailto:Dan.Pennington@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:daniel.fitzpatrick@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:dsanford@portmanatee.com
mailto:David.Wirth@stpete.org
mailto:danderton@broward.org
mailto:denise@portmanatee.com
mailto:DLuensmann@portcanaveral.com
mailto:DLuensmann@portcanaveral.com
mailto:donna.budd@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:dbradshaw@cityofkeywest-fl.gov
mailto:doug@flaports.org
mailto:emilie.oglesby@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:eric.green@jaxport.com
mailto:Frederick.Wong@jaxport.com
mailto:gerard.orourke@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:gwiltshire@broward.org
mailto:gmagidson@portofportstjoe.com
mailto:hydi.webb@miamidade.gov
mailto:jeff@littlejohnmann.com
mailto:jparmentier@portcanaveral.com
mailto:jessie.werner@flaports.org
mailto:jessie.werner@flaports.org
mailto:Jill.Mashburn@jaxport.com
mailto:jpyburn@broward.org
mailto:Jimmy.McDonald@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:jmurray@portcanaveral.com
mailto:juk@miamidade.gov
mailto:Justin.Damiano@jaxport.com
mailto:kemery@portofpalmbeach.com
mailto:kwynneroberts@broward.org
mailto:katherine.morrison@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:Kathy.wilson@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:ken.lawson@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:ken.lawson@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:kevin.thibault@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:crocek@stlucieco.org
mailto:laura@nassauflorida.com
mailto:Lorena.Clark@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:almira@portofpalmbeach.com
mailto:mark.reichert@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:mark.reichert@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:maureen.smith@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:MPoole@portcanaveral.com
mailto:mike.rubin@flaports.org
mailto:pposton@portcanaveral.com
mailto:panderson@tampaport.com
mailto:panderson@tampaport.com
mailto:pbuchan@broward.org
mailto:rkancharla@tampaport.com
mailto:Randy.Oliver@citrusbocc.com
mailto:rdevill@miamidade.gov
mailto:Ryan.Fierst@deo.myflorida.com
mailto:staceyj@miamidade.gov
mailto:staceyj@miamidade.gov
mailto:paynes@stlucieco.org
mailto:tdaugherty@portmanatee.com
mailto:tmoore@tampaport.com
mailto:tom.byron@dot.state.fl.us
mailto:tkrutz@portcanaveral.com
mailto:wstubbs@portpanamacityusa.com
https://www.transportation.gov/sites/dot.gov/files/docs/policy-initiatives/build/114796/build-nofo-2019.pdf
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8
https://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/outreach



PAGE 1 


G4910-9X 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 


Office of the Secretary of Transportation 


Notice of Funding Opportunity for the Department of Transportation’s National 


Infrastructure Investments under the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019  


AGENCY: Office of the Secretary of Transportation, DOT 


ACTION: Notice of Funding Opportunity  


SUMMARY: The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019 (Pub. L. 116-6, February 15, 


2019) (“FY 2019 Appropriations Act”) appropriated $900 million to be awarded by the 


Department of Transportation (“DOT”) for National Infrastructure Investments. This 


appropriation stems from the program funded and implemented pursuant to the American 


Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Recovery Act”) and is known as the Better 


Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development, or “BUILD Transportation grants,” 


program.  Funds for the FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grants program are to be 


awarded on a competitive basis for surface transportation infrastructure projects that will 


have a significant local or regional impact. The purpose of this notice is to solicit 


applications for BUILD Transportation grants.    


DATES: Applications must be submitted by 8:00 PM E.D.T. on July 15, 2019.   


ADDRESSES: Applications must be submitted through Grants.gov.   


FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: For further information concerning 


this notice, please contact the BUILD Transportation grants program staff via e-mail at 


BUILDgrants@dot.gov, or call Howard Hill at 202-366-0301. A TDD is available for 


individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing at 202-366-3993. In addition, DOT will 







 
 


PAGE 2  


regularly post answers to questions and requests for clarifications as well as information 


about webinars for further guidance on DOT’s website at 


www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants. 


SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grant 


program will make awards to surface transportation infrastructure projects that will have 


a significant impact throughout the country. Each section of this notice contains 


information and instructions relevant to the application process for these BUILD 


Transportation grants, and all applicants should read this notice in its entirety so that they 


have the information they need to submit eligible and competitive applications. For this 


round of BUILD Transportation grants, the maximum grant award is $25 million, and no 


more than $90 million can be awarded to a single State, as specified in the FY 2019 


Appropriations Act.  Per statute, the FY 2019 selection criteria are the same as under the 


FY 2017 TIGER program, although the description for each criterion has been updated.  


For FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grants, the definitions of urban and rural areas differ 


from previous rounds.  Additionally, not more than 50 percent of funds will be awarded 


to projects located in urban and rural areas, respectively.   


Table of Contents 


A. Program Description 


B. Federal Award Information  


C. Eligibility Information 


D. Application and Submission Information 


E. Application Review Information 


F. Federal Award Administration Information 







 
 


PAGE 3  


G. Federal Awarding Agency Contacts 


H. Other Information  


A. Program Description  


The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2019 (Pub. L. 116-6, February 15, 2019) (“FY 


2019 Appropriations Act”) appropriated $900 million to be awarded by the Department 


of Transportation (“DOT”) for National Infrastructure Investments. Since this program 


was created, $7.1 billion has been awarded for capital investments in surface 


transportation infrastructure over ten rounds of competitive grants.  Throughout the 


program, these discretionary grant awards have supported projects that have a significant 


local or regional impact.  


 Like the FY 2017 TIGER program, the FY 2019 BUILD program will also give 


special consideration to projects which emphasize improved access to reliable, safe, and 


affordable transportation for communities in rural areas, such as projects that improve 


infrastructure condition, address public health and safety, promote regional connectivity 


or facilitate economic growth or competitiveness.  Such projects may concurrently invest 


in broadband to better facilitate productivity, including through the U.S. Department of 


Agriculture’s ReConnect Loan and Grant program, and help rural citizens access 


opportunities, or promote energy independence to help deliver significant local or 


regional economic benefit. 


B. Federal Award Information  


1. Amount Available 


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act appropriated $900 million to be awarded by DOT 


for the BUILD Transportation grants program. The FY 2019 BUILD Transportation 







 
 


PAGE 4  


grants are for capital investments in surface transportation infrastructure and are to be 


awarded on a competitive basis for projects that will have a significant local or regional 


impact. Additionally, the Act allows for up to $15 million (of the $900 million) to be 


awarded for the planning, preparation or design of eligible projects.  DOT is referring to 


any such awards as BUILD Transportation planning grants.  The FY 2019 Appropriations 


Act also allows DOT to retain up to $27 million of the $900 million for award, oversight 


and administration of grants and credit assistance made under the program.  If this 


solicitation does not result in the award and obligation of all available funds, DOT may 


publish additional solicitations. 


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act allows up to 20 percent of available funds (or $180 


million) to be used by the Department to pay the subsidy and administrative costs of a 


project receiving credit assistance under the Transportation Infrastructure Finance and 


Innovation Act of 1998 (“TIFIA”) or Railroad Rehabilitation and Improvement Financing 


(RRIF) programs, if that use of the FY 2019 BUILD funds would further the purposes of 


the BUILD Transportation grants program.  


2. Award Size  


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act specifies that BUILD Transportation grants may not 


be less than $5 million and not greater than $25 million, except that for projects located 


in rural areas (as defined in Section C.3.ii.) the award size is $1 million.  There is no 


minimum award size, regardless of location, for BUILD Transportation planning grants.  


3. Restrictions on Funding  


Pursuant to the FY 2019 Appropriations Act, no more than 10 percent of the funds 


made available for BUILD Transportation grants (or $90 million) may be awarded to 







 
 


PAGE 5  


projects in a single State.  The Act also directs that not more than 50 percent of the funds 


provided for BUILD Transportation grants (or $450 million) shall be used for projects 


located in rural areas with population equal to or less than 200,000, and directs that not 


more than 50 percent of the funds provided for BUILD Transportation grants (or $450 


million) shall be used for projects located in urbanized areas with a population of more 


than 200,000. Further, DOT must take measures to ensure an equitable geographic 


distribution of grant funds, an appropriate balance in addressing the needs of urban and 


rural areas, and investment in a variety of transportation modes. 


4. Availability of Funds  


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act requires that FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grants 


funds are available for obligation only through September 30, 2021.  Obligation occurs 


when a selected applicant and DOT enter into a written grant agreement after the 


applicant has satisfied applicable administrative requirements, including transportation 


planning and environmental review requirements. Unless authorized by the Department 


in writing after the Department’s announcement of FY 2019 BUILD awards, any costs 


incurred prior to the Department’s obligation of funds for a project are ineligible for 


reimbursement.1  All FY 2019 BUILD funds must be expended (the grant obligation 


must be liquidated or actually paid out to the grantee) by September 30, 2026.  After this 


date, unliquidated funds are no longer available to the project.  As part of the review and 


                                                 
1 Pre-award costs are only costs incurred directly pursuant to the negotiation and anticipation of the BUILD 
award where such costs are necessary for efficient and timely performance of the scope of work, as 
determined by DOT. Costs incurred under an advance construction (23 U.S.C. 115) authorization before 
the DOT announces that a project is selected for a FY 2019 BUILD award cannot be charged to FY 2019 
BUILD funds.  
 Likewise, costs incurred under an FTA Letter of No Prejudice under Chapter 53 of title 49 U.S.C. before 
the DOT announces that a project is selected for a FY 2019 BUILD award cannot be charged to FY 2019 
BUILD funds. 







 
 


PAGE 6  


selection process described in Section E.2., DOT will consider a project’s likelihood of 


being ready to proceed with an obligation of BUILD Transportation grant funds and 


complete liquidation of these obligations, within the statutory timelines.  No waiver is 


possible for these deadlines. 


5. Previous BUILD/TIGER Awards  


Recipients of BUILD/TIGER grants may apply for funding to support additional 


phases of a project previously awarded funds in the BUILD/TIGER program.  However, 


to be competitive, the applicant should demonstrate the extent to which the previously 


funded project phase has met estimated project schedules and budget, as well as the 


ability to realize the benefits expected for the project. 


C. Eligibility Information 


To be selected for a BUILD Transportation grant, an applicant must be an Eligible 


Applicant and the project must be an Eligible Project. 


1. Eligible Applicants 


Eligible Applicants for BUILD Transportation grants are State, local, and tribal 


governments, including U.S. territories, transit agencies, port authorities, metropolitan 


planning organizations (MPOs), and other political subdivisions of State or local 


governments. 


Multiple States or jurisdictions may submit a joint application and must identify a 


lead applicant as the primary point of contact and also identify the primary recipient of 


the award. Each applicant in a joint application must be an Eligible Applicant.  Joint 


applications must include a description of the roles and responsibilities of each applicant 


and must be signed by each applicant. 







 
 


PAGE 7  


2. Cost Sharing or Matching 


Per the FY 2019 Appropriations Act, the Federal share of project costs for which an 


expenditure is made under the BUILD Transportation grant program may not exceed 80 


percent for a project located in an urban area.2 The Secretary may increase the Federal 


share of costs above 80 percent for a project located in a rural area. Urban area and rural 


area are defined in Section C.3.ii of this notice.  


Non-Federal sources include State funds originating from programs funded by State 


revenue, local funds originating from State or local revenue-funded programs, or private 


funds.  Toll credits under 23 U.S.C. 120(i) are considered a Federal source under the 


BUILD program and, therefore, cannot be used to satisfy the statutory cost sharing 


requirement of a BUILD award. Unless otherwise authorized by statute, non-Federal 


cost-share may not be counted as the non-Federal share for both the BUILD 


Transportation grant and another Federal grant program. The Department will not 


consider previously incurred costs or previously expended or encumbered funds towards 


the matching requirement for any project.  Matching funds are subject to the same 


Federal requirements described in Section F.2. as awarded funds.  If repaid from non-


Federal sources, Federal credit assistance is considered non-Federal share. 


3. Other  


i. Eligible Projects  


Eligible projects for BUILD Transportation grants are surface transportation capital 


projects that include, but are not limited to: (1) highway, bridge, or other road projects 


eligible under title 23, United States Code; (2) public transportation projects eligible 


                                                 
2 To meet match requirements, the minimum total project cost for a project located in an urban area must be 
$6.25 million.    







 
 


PAGE 8  


under chapter 53 of title 49, United States Code; (3) passenger and freight rail 


transportation projects; (4) port infrastructure investments (including inland port 


infrastructure and land ports of entry); and (5) intermodal projects.3 


Improvements to Federally owned facilities are ineligible under the FY 2019 BUILD 


program.  Research, demonstration, or pilot projects are eligible only if they will result in 


long-term, permanent surface transportation infrastructure that has independent utility as 


defined in Section C.3.iii. 


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act allows up to $15 million for the planning, 


preparation or design of eligible projects.  Activities eligible for funding under BUILD 


Transportation planning grants are related to the planning, preparation, or design—


including environmental analysis, feasibility studies, and other pre-construction 


activities—of surface transportation capital projects.   


Applicants are strongly encouraged to submit applications only for eligible award 


amounts.  


ii.  Rural/Urban Definition 


For purposes of this notice, a project is designated as urban if it is located within (or 


on the boundary of) a Census-designated urbanized area4 that had a population greater 


than 200,000 in the 2010 Census5.  If a project is located outside a Census-designated 


urbanized area with a population greater than 200,000, it is designated as a rural project.  


Rural and urban definitions differ in some other DOT programs, including TIFIA.    


                                                 
3 Please note that the Department may use a BUILD Transportation grant to pay for the surface 
transportation components of a broader project that has non-surface transportation components, and 
applicants are encouraged to apply for BUILD Transportation grants to pay for the surface transportation 
components of these projects. 
4 Updated lists of UAs as defined by the Census Bureau are available on the Census Bureau website at 
http://www2.census.gov/geo/maps/dc10map/UAUC_RefMap/ua/.    
5 See www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants for a list of UAs.   







 
 


PAGE 9  


A project located in both an urban and a rural area will be designated as urban if the 


majority of the project’s costs will be spent in urban areas.  Conversely, a project located 


in both an urban area and a rural area will be designated as rural if the majority of the 


project’s costs will be spent in rural areas.  


This definition affects four aspects of the program: (1) not more than $450 million of 


the funds provided for BUILD Transportation grants are to be used for projects in rural 


areas; (2) not more than $450 million of the funds provided for BUILD Transportation 


grants are to be used for projects in urban areas; (3) for a project in a rural area the 


minimum award is $1 million; and (4) the Secretary may increase the Federal share above 


80 percent to pay for the costs of a project in a rural area. 


iii.  Project Components  


An application may describe a project that contains more than one component, 


and may describe components that may be carried out by parties other than the applicant.  


DOT may award funds for a component, instead of the larger project, if that component 


(1) independently meets minimum award amounts described in Section B and all 


eligibility requirements described in Section C; (2) independently aligns well with the 


selection criteria specified in Section E; and (3) meets National Environmental Policy Act 


(NEPA) requirements with respect to independent utility.  Independent utility means that 


the component will represent a transportation improvement that is usable and represents a 


reasonable expenditure of DOT funds even if no other improvements are made in the 


area, and will be ready for intended use upon completion of that component's 


construction.  All project components that are presented together in a single application 







 
 


PAGE 10  


must demonstrate a relationship or connection between them. (See Section D.2.iv. for 


Required Approvals).   


Applicants should be aware that, depending upon the relationship between project 


components and applicable Federal law, DOT funding of only some project components 


may make other project components subject to Federal requirements as described in 


Section F.2.  


DOT strongly encourages applicants to identify in their applications the project 


components that have independent utility and separately detail costs and requested 


BUILD Transportation grant funding for those components.  If the application identifies 


one or more independent project components, the application should clearly identify how 


each independent component addresses selection criteria and produces benefits on its 


own, in addition to describing how the full proposal of which the independent component 


is a part addresses selection criteria. 


iv.  Application Limit  


Each lead applicant may submit no more than three applications.  Unrelated project 


components should not be bundled in a single application for the purpose of adhering to 


the limit.  If a lead applicant submits more than three applications as the lead applicant, 


only the first three received will be considered.  


D. Application and Submission Information 


1. Address 


Applications must be submitted to Grants.gov.  Instructions for submitting 


applications can be found at www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants along with specific 


instructions for the forms and attachments required for submission. 







 
 


PAGE 11  


2. Content and Form of Application Submission 


The application must include the Standard Form 424 (Application for Federal 


Assistance), cover page, and the Project Narrative.  More detailed information about the 


Project Narrative follows.  Applicants should also complete and attach to their 


application the “BUILD 2019 Project Information” form available at 


www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants. 


The Department recommends that the project narrative follow the basic outline 


below to address the program requirements and assist evaluators in locating relevant 


information.  


I. Project Description See D.2.i 
II. Project Location See D.2.ii 
III. Grant Funds, Sources and Uses of all Project 


Funding See D.2.iii  


IV. Selection Criteria See D.2.iv. and E.1.i. 
V. Project Readiness See D.2.v. and E.1.ii 
VI. Benefit Cost Analysis See D.2.vi. and E.1.iii. 


 
The project narrative should include the information necessary for the Department 


to determine that the project satisfies project requirements described in Sections B and C 


and to assess the selection criteria specified in Section E.1.  To the extent practicable, 


applicants should provide supporting data and documentation in a form that is directly 


verifiable by the Department.  The Department may ask any applicant to supplement data 


in its application but expects applications to be complete upon submission.  


In addition to a detailed statement of work, detailed project schedule, and detailed 


project budget, the project narrative should include a table of contents, maps and 


graphics, as appropriate, to make the information easier to review.  The Department 


recommends that the project narrative be prepared with standard formatting preferences 







 
 


PAGE 12  


(a single-spaced document, using a standard 12-point font such as Times New Roman, 


with 1-inch margins).  The project narrative may not exceed 30 pages in length, 


excluding cover pages and table of contents.  The only substantive portions that may 


exceed the 30-page limit are documents supporting assertions or conclusions made in the 


30-page project narrative.  If possible, website links to supporting documentation should 


be provided rather than copies of these supporting materials.  If supporting documents are 


submitted, applicants should clearly identify within the project narrative the relevant 


portion of the project narrative that each supporting document supports.  The Department 


recommends using appropriately descriptive file names (e.g., “Project Narrative,” 


“Maps,” “Memoranda of Understanding and Letters of Support,” etc.) for all attachments.  


DOT recommends applications include the following sections: 


i. Project Description  


The first section of the application should provide a concise description of the 


project, the transportation challenges that it is intended to address, and how it will address 


those challenges.  This section should discuss the project’s history, including a 


description of any previously completed components.  The applicant may use this section 


to place the project into a broader context of other transportation infrastructure 


investments being pursued by the project sponsor, and, if applicable, how it will benefit 


communities in rural areas. 


ii. Project Location  


This section of the application should describe the project location, including a 


detailed geographical description of the proposed project, a map of the project’s location 


and connections to existing transportation infrastructure, and geospatial data describing 







 
 


PAGE 13  


the project location.  If the project is located within the boundary of a Census-designated 


urbanized area, the application should identify that urbanized area.   


iii. Grant Funds, Sources and Uses of Project Funds  


This section of the application should describe the project’s budget.  This budget 


should not include any previously incurred expenses.  At a minimum, it should include: 


(A) Project costs; 


(B) For all funds to be used for eligible project costs, the source and amount of 


those funds; 


(C) For non-Federal funds to be used for eligible project costs, documentation 


of funding commitments should be referenced here and included as an appendix to the 


application; 


(D) For Federal funds to be used for eligible project costs, the amount, nature, 


and source of any required non-Federal match for those funds; and 


(E) A budget showing how each source of funds will be spent.  The budget 


should show how each funding source will share in each major construction activity, and 


present that data in dollars and percentages.  Funding sources should be grouped into 


three categories: non-Federal; BUILD; and other Federal.  If the project contains 


individual components, the budget should separate the costs of each project component.  


If the project will be completed in phases, the budget should separate the costs of each 


phase.  The budget detail should sufficiently demonstrate that the project satisfies the 


statutory cost-sharing requirements described in Section C.2. 


In addition to the information enumerated above, this section should provide 


complete information on how all project funds may be used.  For example, if a particular 







 
 


PAGE 14  


source of funds is available only after a condition is satisfied, the application should 


identify that condition and describe the applicant’s control over whether it is satisfied.  


Similarly, if a particular source of funds is available for expenditure only during a fixed 


time period, the application should describe that restriction.  Complete information about 


project funds will ensure that the Department’s expectations for award execution align 


with any funding restrictions unrelated to the Department, even if an award differs from 


the applicant’s request. 


iv. Selection Criteria  


This section of the application should demonstrate how the project aligns with the 


Criteria described in Section E.1 of this notice.  The Department encourages applicants to 


either address each criterion or expressly state that the project does not address the 


criterion.  Applicants are not required to follow a specific format, but the outline 


suggested below, which addresses each criterion separately, promotes a clear discussion 


that assists project evaluators.  To minimize redundant information in the application, the 


Department encourages applicants to cross-reference from this section of their application 


to relevant substantive information in other sections of the application. The guidance in 


this section is about how the applicant should organize their application.  Guidance 


describing how the Department will evaluate projects against the Selection Criteria is in 


Section E.1 of this notice.  Applicants also should review that section before considering 


how to organize their application.  







 
 


PAGE 15  


(1) Primary Selection Criteria  


(a) Safety  


This section of the application should describe the anticipated outcomes of the project 


that support the Safety criterion (described in Section E.1.i.(a) of this notice).  The 


applicant should include information on, and to the extent possible, quantify, how the 


project would improve safety outcomes within the project area or wider transportation 


network, to include how the project will reduce the number, rate, and consequences of 


transportation-related accidents, serious injuries, and fatalities.  If applicable, the 


applicant should also include information on how the project will eliminate unsafe grade 


crossings or contribute to preventing unintended releases of hazardous materials.  


(b) State of Good Repair  


This section of the application should describe how the project will contribute to a 


state of good repair by improving the condition or resilience of existing transportation 


facilities and systems (described in Section E.1.i.(b) of this notice), including the 


project’s current condition and how the proposed project will improve it, and any 


estimates of impacts on long-term cost structures or overall life-cycle costs.  If the project 


will contribute to a state of good repair of transportation infrastructure that supports 


border security, the applicant should describe how. 


(c) Economic Competitiveness  


This section of the application should describe how the project will support the 


Economic Competitiveness criterion (described in Section E.1.i.(c) of this notice). The 


applicant should include information about expected impacts of the project on the 


movement of goods and people, including how the project increases the efficiency of 







 
 


PAGE 16  


movement and thereby reduces costs of doing business, improves local and regional 


freight connectivity to the national and global economy, reduces burdens of commuting, 


and improves overall well-being.  The applicant should describe the extent to which the 


project contributes to the functioning and growth of the economy, including the extent to 


which the project addresses congestion or freight connectivity, bridges service gaps in 


rural areas, or promotes the expansion of private economic development including in 


Opportunity Zones. 


(d) Environmental Sustainability  


This section of the application should describe how the project addresses the 


environmental sustainability criterion (described in Section E.1.i.(d) of this notice).  


Applicants are encouraged to provide quantitative information, including baseline 


information that demonstrates how the project will reduce energy consumption, reduce 


stormwater runoff, or achieve other benefits for the environment such as brownfield 


redevelopment. 


(e) Quality of Life  


This section should describe how the project increases transportation choices for 


individuals, expands access to essential services for people in communities across the 


United States, improves connectivity for citizens to jobs, health care, and other critical 


destinations, particularly for rural communities,  or otherwise addresses the quality of life 


criterion (described in Section E.1.i.(e) of this notice).  If construction of the 


transportation project will allow concurrent installation of fiber or other broadband 


deployment as an essential service, the applicant should describe those activities and how 







 
 


PAGE 17  


they support quality of life. Unless the concurrent activities support transportation, they 


will not be eligible for reimbursement.   


(2) Secondary Selection Criteria 


(a) Innovation 


This section of the application should describe innovative strategies used and the 


anticipated benefits of using those strategies, including those corresponding to three 


categories (described in Section E.1.i.(f) of this notice): (i) Innovative Technologies, (ii) 


Innovative Project Delivery, or (iii) Innovative Financing.   


(i) Innovative Technologies 


If an applicant is proposing to adopt innovative safety approaches or technology, 


the application should demonstrate the applicant’s capacity to implement those 


innovations, the applicant’s understanding of applicable Federal requirements and 


whether the innovations may require extraordinary permitting, approvals, exemptions, 


waivers, or other procedural actions, and the effects of those innovations on the project 


delivery timeline. 


If an applicant is proposing to deploy innovative traveler information systems or 


technologies as part of the surface transportation capital project, including work zone 


data exchanges or related data exchanges, the application should demonstrate the 


applicant’s capacity to implement these innovations, the applicant’s understanding of 


applicable data standards, and whether the proposed innovations will advance safety or 


other benefits during and after project completion. 


If an applicant is proposing to deploy autonomous vehicles or other innovative 


motor vehicle technology, the application should demonstrate that all vehicles will 







 
 


PAGE 18  


comply with applicable safety requirements, including those administered by the National 


Highway Traffic Safety Administration (NHTSA) and Federal Motor Carrier Safety 


Administration (FMCSA). Specifically, the application should show that vehicles 


acquired for the proposed project will comply with applicable Federal Motor Vehicle 


Safety Standards (FMVSS) and Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations (FMCSR). If 


the vehicles may not comply, the application should either (1) show that the vehicles and 


their proposed operations are within the scope of an exemption or wavier that has already 


been granted by NHTSA, FMCSA, or both agencies or (2) directly address whether the 


project will require exemptions or waivers from the FMVSS, FMCSR, or any other 


regulation and, if the project will require exemptions or waivers, present a plan for 


obtaining them. 


(ii) Innovative Project Delivery 


If an applicant plans to use innovative approaches to project delivery or is located 


in a State with NEPA delegation authority, applicants should describe those project 


delivery methods and how they are expected to improve the efficiency of the project 


development or expedite project delivery. 


If an applicant is proposing to use SEP–14 or SEP–15 (as described in section 


E.1.i.(f) of this notice) the applicant should describe that proposal. The applicant should 


also provide sufficient information for evaluators to confirm that the applicant’s proposal 


would meet the requirements of the specific experimental authority program.6 


(iii) Innovative Financing 


                                                 
6 SEP–14 information is available at https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/contracts/sep_ 
a.cfm. SEP–15 information is available at 
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/ipd/p3/toolkit/usdot/sep15/implementation_procedure/  







 
 


PAGE 19  


If an applicant plans to incorporate innovative funding or financing, the applicant 


should describe the funding or financing approach, including a description of all activities 


undertaken to pursue private funding or financing for the project and the outcomes of 


those activities.   


(b) Partnership 


This section of the application should include information to assess the 


partnership criterion (described in Section E.1.i.(g) of this notice) including a list of all 


project parties and details about the proposed grant recipient and other public and private 


parties who are involved in delivering the project.  This section should also describe 


efforts to collaborate among stakeholders, including with the private sector.  Applications 


for projects involving other Federal agencies, or requiring action from other Federal 


agencies, should demonstrate commitment and involvement of those agencies.  For 


example, projects involving border infrastructure should demonstrate evidence of 


concurrent investment from U.S. Customs and Border Patrol, U.S. Department of State, 


and other relevant Federal agencies; relevant port projects should demonstrate alignment 


with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers investment strategies.  


v. Project Readiness  


This section of the application should include information that, when considered 


with the project budget information presented elsewhere in the application, is sufficient 


for the Department to evaluate whether the project is reasonably expected to begin 


construction in a timely manner.  To assist the Department’s project readiness 


assessment, the applicant should provide the information requested on technical 


feasibility, project schedule, project approvals, and project risks, each of which is 







 
 


PAGE 20  


described in greater detail in the following sections.  Applicants are not required to 


follow the specific format described here, but this organization, which addresses each 


relevant aspect of project readiness, promotes a clear discussion that assists project 


evaluators.  To minimize redundant information in the application, the Department 


encourages applicants to cross-reference from this section of their application to relevant 


substantive information in other sections of the application. 


The guidance here is about what information applicants should provide and how 


the applicant should organize their application.  Guidance describing how the Department 


will evaluate a project’s readiness is described in Section E.1.ii of this notice.  Applicants 


should review that section when considering how to organize their application. 


(a) Technical Feasibility 


The applicant should demonstrate the technical feasibility of the project with 


engineering and design studies and activities; the development of design criteria and/or a 


basis of design; the basis for the cost estimate presented in the BUILD application, 


including the identification of contingency levels appropriate to its level of design; and 


any scope, schedule, and budget risk-mitigation measures.  Applicants should include a 


detailed statement of work that focuses on the technical and engineering aspects of the 


project and describes in detail the project to be constructed.  


(b) Project Schedule 


The applicant should include a detailed project schedule that identifies all major 


project milestones.  Examples of such milestones include State and local planning 


approvals (e.g., programming on the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program); 


start and completion of NEPA and other Federal environmental reviews and approvals 







 
 


PAGE 21  


including permitting; design completion; right of way acquisition; approval of plans, 


specifications and estimates; procurement; State and local approvals; project partnership 


and implementation agreements, including agreements with railroads; and construction.  


The project schedule should be sufficiently detailed to demonstrate that: 


(1) all necessary activities will be complete to allow BUILD Transportation 


grant funds to be obligated sufficiently in advance of the statutory deadline (September 30, 


2021 for FY 2019 funds), and that any unexpected delays will not put the funds at risk of 


expiring before they are obligated; 


(2) the project can begin construction quickly upon obligation of grant funds 


and that those funds will be spent expeditiously once construction starts, with all funds 


expended by September 30, 2026; and  


(3) all real property and right-of-way acquisition will be completed in a timely 


manner in accordance with 49 CFR part 24, 23 CFR part 710, and other applicable legal 


requirements or a statement that no acquisition is necessary.   


(c) Required Approvals 


(1) Environmental Permits and Reviews.  The application should demonstrate 


receipt (or reasonably anticipated receipt) of all environmental approvals and permits 


necessary for the project to proceed to construction on the timeline specified in the 


project schedule and necessary to meet the statutory obligation deadline, including 


satisfaction of all Federal, State and local requirements and completion of the NEPA 


process.  Specifically, the application should include: 


(a) Information about the NEPA status of the project.  If the NEPA 


process is complete, an applicant should indicate the date of completion, and provide a 







 
 


PAGE 22  


website link or other reference to the final Categorical Exclusion, Finding of No 


Significant Impact, Record of Decision, and any other NEPA documents prepared.  If the 


NEPA process is underway, but not complete, the application should detail the type of 


NEPA review underway, where the project is in the process, and indicate the anticipated 


date of completion of all milestones and of the final NEPA determination.  If the last 


agency action with respect to NEPA documents occurred more than three years before 


the application date, the applicant should describe why the project has been delayed and 


include a proposed approach for verifying and, if necessary, updating this material in 


accordance with applicable NEPA requirements.  


(b) Information on reviews, approvals, and permits by other agencies.  


An application should indicate whether the proposed project requires reviews or approval 


actions by other agencies7, indicate the status of such actions, and provide detailed 


information about the status of those reviews or approvals and should demonstrate 


compliance with any other applicable Federal, State or local requirements, and when such 


approvals are expected.  Applicants should provide a website link or other reference to 


copies of any reviews, approvals, and permits prepared.  


(c) Environmental studies or other documents, preferably through a 


website link, that describe in detail known project impacts, and possible mitigation for 


those impacts.  


(d) A description of discussions with the appropriate DOT operating 


administration field or headquarters office regarding the project’s compliance with NEPA 


and other applicable Federal environmental reviews and approvals. 


                                                 
7 Projects that may impact protected resources such as wetlands, species habitat, cultural or historic 
resources require review and approval by Federal and State agencies with jurisdiction over those resources.   







 
 


PAGE 23  


(e) A description of public engagement about the project that has 


occurred, including details on the degree to which public comments and commitments 


have been integrated into project development and design. 


(2) State and Local Approvals.  The applicant should demonstrate receipt of 


State and local approvals on which the project depends, such as State and local 


environmental and planning approvals and Statewide Transportation Improvement 


Program (STIP) or (Transportation Improvement Program) TIP funding.  Additional 


support from relevant State and local officials is not required; however, an applicant 


should demonstrate that the project has broad public support. 


(3) Federal Transportation Requirements Affecting State and Local Planning.  


The planning requirements applicable to the relevant operating administration apply to all 


BUILD Transportation grant projects,8 including intermodal projects located at airport 


facilities.9  Applicants should demonstrate that a project that is required to be included in 


                                                 
8 Under 23 U.S.C. 134 and 135, all projects requiring an action by FHWA must be in the applicable plan 
and programming documents (e.g., metropolitan transportation plan, transportation improvement program 
(TIP) and statewide transportation improvement program (STIP)). Further, in air quality non-attainment 
and maintenance areas, all regionally significant projects, regardless of the funding source, must be 
included in the conforming metropolitan transportation plan and TIP. Inclusion in the STIP is required 
under certain circumstances. To the extent a project is required to be on a metropolitan transportation plan, 
TIP, and/or STIP, it will not receive a BUILD Transportation grant until it is included in such plans. Plans 
that do not currently include the awarded BUILD project can be amended by the State and MPO. Projects 
that are not required to be in long range transportation plans, STIPs, and TIPs will not need to be included 
in such plans in order to receive a BUILD Transportation grant.  Port, freight rail, and intermodal projects 
are not required to be on the State Rail Plans called for in the Passenger Rail Investment and Improvement 
Act of 2008, or in a State Freight Plan as described in the FAST Act. However, applicants seeking funding 
for freight projects are encouraged to demonstrate that they have done sufficient planning to ensure that 
projects fit into a prioritized list of capital needs and are consistent with long-range goals. Means of 
demonstrating this consistency would include whether the project is in a TIP or a State Freight Plan that 
conforms to the requirements 49 U.S.C. 70202 prior to the start of construction. Port planning guidelines 
are available at StrongPorts.gov. 
9 Projects at grant obligated airports must be compatible with the FAA-approved Airport Layout Plan, as 
well as aeronautical surfaces associated with the landing and takeoff of aircraft at the airport.  Additionally, 
projects at an airport: must comply with established Sponsor Grant Assurances, including (but not limited 
to) requirements for non-exclusive use facilities, consultation with users, consistency with local plans 
including development of the area surrounding the airport, and consideration of the interest of nearby 







 
 


PAGE 24  


the relevant State, metropolitan, and local planning documents has been or will be 


included in such documents.  If the project is not included in a relevant planning 


document at the time the application is submitted, the applicant should submit a statement 


from the appropriate planning agency that actions are underway to include the project in 


the relevant planning document.  


To the extent possible, freight projects should be included in a State Freight Plan 


and supported by a State Freight Advisory Committee (49 U.S.C. 70201, 70202), if these 


exist.  Applicants should provide links or other documentation supporting this 


consideration.  


Because projects have different schedules, the construction start date for each 


BUILD Transportation grant must be specified in the project-specific agreements signed 


by relevant operating administration and the grant recipients, based on critical path items 


that applicants identify in the application and will be consistent with relevant State and 


local plans.   


(d) Assessment of Project Risks and Mitigation Strategies 


Project risks, such as procurement delays, environmental uncertainties, increases 


in real estate acquisition costs, uncommitted local match, unavailability of vehicles that 


either comply with Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards or are exempt from Federal 


Motor Vehicle Safety Standards in a manner that allows for their legal acquisition and 


deployment, unavailability of domestically manufactured equipment, or lack of 


legislative approval, affect the likelihood of successful project start and completion.  The 


applicant should identify all material risks to the project and the strategies that the lead 


                                                 
communities, among others; and must not adversely affect the continued and unhindered access of 
passengers to the terminal. 







 
 


PAGE 25  


applicant and any project partners have undertaken or will undertake in order to mitigate 


those risks.  The applicant should assess the greatest risks to the project and identify how 


the project parties will mitigate those risks. 


If an applicant anticipates pursuing a waiver for relevant domestic preference 


laws, the applicant should describe steps that have been or will be taken to maximize the 


use of domestic goods, products, and materials in constructing their project.   


To the extent the applicant is unfamiliar with the Federal program, the applicant 


should contact the appropriate DOT operating administration field or headquarters 


offices, as found in contact information at www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants, for 


information on the pre-requisite steps to obligate Federal funds in order to ensure that 


their project schedule is reasonable and that there are no risks of delays in satisfying 


Federal requirements. 


BUILD Transportation planning grant applicants should describe their capacity to 


successfully implement the proposed activities in a timely manner. 


vi. Benefit Cost Analysis  


This section describes the recommended approach for the completion and 


submission of a benefit-cost analysis (BCA) as an appendix to the Project Narrative.  The 


results of the analysis should be summarized in the Project Narrative directly, as 


described in Section D.2. 


The appendix should provide present value estimates of a project’s benefits and 


costs relative to a no-build baseline.  To calculate present values, applicants should apply 


a real discount rate (i.e., the discount rate net of the inflation rate) of 7 percent per year to 


the project’s streams of benefits and costs.  The purpose of the BCA is to enable the 







 
 


PAGE 26  


Department to evaluate the project’s cost-effectiveness by estimating a benefit-cost ratio 


and calculating the magnitude of net benefits for the project.   


The primary economic benefits from projects eligible for BUILD Transportation 


grants are likely to include savings in travel time costs, vehicle or terminal operating 


costs, and safety costs for both existing users of the improved facility and new users who 


may be attracted to it as a result of the project.  Reduced damages from vehicle emissions 


and savings in maintenance costs to public agencies may also be quantified.  Applicants 


may describe other categories of benefits in the BCA that are more difficult to quantify 


and value in economic terms, such as improving the reliability of travel times or 


improvements to the existing human and natural environments (such as increased 


connectivity, improved public health, storm water runoff mitigation, and noise reduction), 


while also providing numerical estimates of the magnitude and timing of each of these 


additional impacts wherever possible.  Any benefits claimed for the project, both 


quantified and unquantified, should be clearly tied to the expected outcomes of the 


project. 


The BCA should include the full costs of developing, constructing, operating, and 


maintaining the proposed project, as well as the expected timing or schedule for costs in 


each of these categories.  The BCA may also consider the present discounted value of any 


remaining service life of the asset at the end of the analysis period.  The costs and 


benefits that are compared in the BCA should also cover the same project scope. 


The BCA should carefully document the assumptions and methodology used to 


produce the analysis, including a description of the baseline, the sources of data used to 


project the outcomes of the project, and the values of key input parameters.  Applicants 







 
 


PAGE 27  


should provide all relevant files used for their BCA, including any spreadsheet files and 


technical memos describing the analysis (whether created in-house or by a contractor).  


The spreadsheets and technical memos should present the calculations in sufficient detail 


and transparency to allow the analysis to be reproduced by DOT evaluators.  Detailed 


guidance for estimating some types of quantitative benefits and costs, together with 


recommended economic values for converting them to dollar terms and discounting to 


their present values, are available in the Department’s guidance for conducting BCAs for 


projects seeking funding under the BUILD Transportation grant program (see 


www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/additional-guidance).    


3. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM) 


Each applicant must: 1) be registered in SAM before submitting its application; 2) 


provide a valid unique entity identifier in its application; and 3) continue to maintain an 


active SAM registration with current information at all times during which it has an 


active Federal award or an application or plan under consideration by a Federal awarding 


agency.  The Department may not make a BUILD Transportation grant to an applicant 


until the applicant has complied with all applicable unique entity identifier and SAM 


requirements and, if an applicant has not fully complied with the requirements by the 


time the Department is ready to make a BUILD Transportation grant, the Department 


may determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive a BUILD Transportation grant 


and use that determination as a basis for making a BUILD Transportation grant to another 


applicant. 







 
 


PAGE 28  


4. Submission Dates and Times 


i. Deadline 


Applications must be submitted by 8:00 PM E.D.T. on July 15, 2019.   


To submit an application through Grants.gov, applicants must:  


(1) Obtain a Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) number; 


(2) Register with the System for Award Management (SAM) at 


www.SAM.gov;  


(3) Create a Grants.gov username and password; and  


(4) The E-Business Point of Contact (POC) at the applicant’s 


organization must respond to the registration email from Grants.gov 


and login at Grants.gov to authorize the applicant as the Authorized 


Organization Representative (AOR). Please note that there can be 


more than one AOR for an organization. 


Please note that the Grants.gov registration process usually takes 2-4 weeks to 


complete and that the Department will not consider late applications that are the result of 


failure to register or comply with Grants.gov applicant requirements in a timely manner.   


For information and instruction on each of these processes, please see instructions at 


http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-faqs.html.  If applicants 


experience difficulties at any point during the registration or application process, please 


call the Grants.gov Customer Service Support Hotline at 1(800) 518-4726, Monday-


Friday from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00 p.m. EST.   







 
 


PAGE 29  


ii. Consideration of Applications: 


Only applicants who comply with all submission deadlines described in this 


notice and electronically submit valid applications through Grants.gov will be eligible for 


award.  Applicants are strongly encouraged to make submissions in advance of the 


deadline.   


iii. Late Applications 


Applicants experiencing technical issues with Grants.gov that are beyond the 


applicant’s control must contact BUILDgrants@dot.gov prior to the application deadline 


with the user name of the registrant and details of the technical issue experienced.  The 


applicant must provide: 


(1) Details of the technical issue experienced; 


(2) Screen capture(s) of the technical issues experienced along with 


corresponding Grants.gov “Grant tracking number;” 


(3) The “Legal Business Name” for the applicant that was provided in the SF-


424; 


(4) The AOR name submitted in the SF-424; 


(5) The DUNS number associated with the application; and 


(6) The Grants.gov Help Desk Tracking Number. 


To ensure a fair competition of limited discretionary funds, the following 


conditions are not valid reasons to permit late submissions: (1) failure to complete the 


registration process before the deadline; (2) failure to follow Grants.gov instructions on 


how to register and apply as posted on its website; (3) failure to follow all instructions in 


this notice of funding opportunity; and (4) technical issues experienced with the 







 
 


PAGE 30  


applicant’s computer or information technology environment.  After the Department 


reviews all information submitted and contact the Grants.gov Help Desk to validate 


reported technical issues, DOT staff will contact late applicants to approve or deny a 


request to submit a late application through Grants.gov.  If the reported technical issues 


cannot be validated, late applications will be rejected as untimely. 


E. Application Review Information 


1. Criteria 


This section specifies the criteria that DOT will use to evaluate and award 


applications for BUILD Transportation grants.  The criteria incorporate the statutory 


eligibility requirements for this program, which are specified in this notice as relevant. 


Projects will also be evaluated for demonstrated project readiness and benefits and costs. 


i. Primary Selection Criteria:   


Applications that do not demonstrate a potential for moderate long-term benefits 


based on these criteria will not proceed in the evaluation process.  DOT does not consider 


any selection criterion more important than the others.  BUILD Transportation planning 


grant applications will be evaluated against the same criteria as capital grant applications.  


While the FY 2019 Appropriations Act allows funding solely for pre-construction 


activities, the Department will prioritize FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grant program 


funding for projects that propose to move into the construction phase within the period of 


obligation.  Accordingly, applications for BUILD Transportation planning grants will be 


less competitive than capital grants.   


The selection criteria, which will receive equal consideration, are: 







 
 


PAGE 31  


(a) Safety   


The Department will assess the project’s ability to foster a safe transportation 


system for the movement of goods and people.  The Department will consider the 


projected impacts on the number, rate, and consequences of crashes, fatalities and injuries 


among transportation users; the project’s contribution to the elimination of highway/rail 


grade crossings, or the project’s contribution to preventing unintended releases of 


hazardous materials.  


(b) State of Good Repair  


The Department will assess whether and to what extent: (1) the project is consistent 


with relevant plans to maintain transportation facilities or systems in a state of good 


repair and address current and projected vulnerabilities; (2) if left unimproved, the poor 


condition of the asset will threaten future transportation network efficiency, mobility of 


goods or accessibility and mobility of people, or economic growth; (3) the project is 


appropriately capitalized up front and uses asset management approaches that optimize 


its long-term cost structure; (4) a sustainable source of revenue is available for operations 


and maintenance of the project and the project will reduce overall life-cycle costs; (5) the 


project will maintain or improve transportation infrastructure that supports border 


security functions; and (6) the project includes a plan to maintain the transportation 


infrastructure in a state of good repair.  The Department will prioritize projects that 


ensure the good condition of transportation infrastructure, including rural transportation 


infrastructure, that support commerce and economic growth.  







 
 


PAGE 32  


(c) Economic Competitiveness 


The Department will assess whether the project will (1) decrease transportation 


costs and improve access, especially for rural communities or communities in 


Opportunity Zones10, through reliable and timely access to employment centers and job 


opportunities; (2) improve long-term efficiency, reliability or costs in the movement of 


workers or goods; (3) increase the economic productivity of land, capital, or labor, 


including assets in Opportunity Zones; (4) result in long-term job creation and other 


economic opportunities; or (5) help the United States compete in a global economy by 


facilitating efficient and reliable freight movement. 


Projects that address congestion in major urban areas, particularly those that do so 


through the use of congestion pricing or the deployment of advanced technology, projects 


that bridge gaps in service in rural areas, and projects that attract private economic 


development, all support local or regional economic competitiveness.   


(d) Environmental Sustainability  


The Department will consider the extent to which the project improves energy 


efficiency, reduces dependence on oil, reduces congestion-related emissions, improves 


water quality, avoids and mitigates environmental impacts and otherwise benefits the 


environment, including through alternative right of way uses demonstrating innovative 


ways to improve or streamline environmental reviews while maintaining the same 


outcomes.  The Department will assess the project’s ability to: (i) reduce energy use and 


air or water pollution through congestion mitigation strategies; (ii) avoid adverse 


environmental impacts to air or water quality, wetlands, and endangered species; or (iii) 


                                                 
10 See https://www.cdfifund.gov/Pages/Opportunity-Zones.aspx for more information on Opportunity 
Zones  







 
 


PAGE 33  


provide environmental benefits, such as brownfield redevelopment, ground water 


recharge in areas of water scarcity, wetlands creation or improved habitat connectivity, 


and stormwater mitigation.  


(e) Quality of Life  


The Department will consider the extent to which the project: (i) increases 


transportation choices for individuals to provide more freedom on transportation 


decisions; (ii) expands access to essential services for communities across the United 


States, particularly for rural communities; or (iii) improves connectivity for citizens to 


jobs, health care, and other critical destinations, particularly for rural communities.  


Americans living in rural areas and on Tribal lands continue to disproportionately lack 


access and connectivity, and the Department will consider whether and the extent to 


which the construction of the transportation project will allow concurrent installation of 


fiber or other broadband deployment as an essential service.  


ii. Secondary Selection Criteria 


(a) Innovation  


The Department will assess the extent to which the applicant uses innovative 


strategies, including: (i) innovative technologies, (ii) innovative project delivery, or (iii) 


innovative financing. 


(i) Innovative Technologies 


DOT will assess innovative approaches to transportation safety, particularly in 


relation to automated vehicles and the detection, mitigation, and documentation of safety 


risks.  When making BUILD Transportation grant award decisions, the Department will 


consider any innovative safety approaches proposed by the applicant, particularly 







 
 


PAGE 34  


projects which incorporate innovative design solutions, enhance the environment for 


automated vehicles, or use technology to improve the detection, mitigation, and 


documentation of safety risks.  Innovative safety approaches may include, but are not 


limited to: 


• Conflict detection and mitigation technologies (e.g., intersection alerts and 


signal prioritization); 


• Dynamic signaling, smart traffic signals, or pricing systems to reduce 


congestion; 


• Traveler information systems, to include work zone data exchanges; 


• Signage and design features that facilitate autonomous or semi-


autonomous vehicle technologies; 


• Applications to automatically capture and report safety-related issues (e.g., 


identifying and documenting near-miss incidents); and 


• Cybersecurity elements to protect safety-critical systems. 


For innovative safety proposals, the Department will evaluate safety benefits that 


those approaches could produce and the broader applicability of the potential results.  


DOT will also assess the extent to which the project uses innovative technology that 


supports surface transportation to significantly enhance the operational performance of 


the transportation system. 


Innovative technologies include: broadband deployment and the installation of 


high-speed networks concurrent with the project construction; connecting Intelligent 


Transportation System (ITS) infrastructure; and providing direct fiber connections that 


support surface transportation to public and private entities, which can provide a platform 







 
 


PAGE 35  


and catalyst for growth of rural communities.  The Department will consider whether and 


the extent to which the construction of the transportation project will allow concurrent 


broadband deployment and the installation of high-speed networks. 


(ii) Innovative Project Delivery 


DOT will consider the extent to which the project utilizes innovative practices in 


contracting (such as public-private partnerships), congestion management, asset 


management, or long-term operations and maintenance.   


The Department also seeks projects that employ innovative approaches to 


improve the efficiency and effectiveness of the environmental permitting and review to 


accelerate project delivery and achieve improved outcomes for communities and the 


environment.  The Department’s objective is to achieve timely and consistent 


environmental review and permit decisions.  Accordingly, projects from States with 


NEPA assignment authority under 23 U.S.C. 327 are considered to use an innovative 


approach to project delivery. Participation in innovative project delivery approaches will 


not remove any statutory requirements affecting project delivery.   


While BUILD Transportation grant award recipients are not required to employ 


innovative approaches, the Department encourages BUILD Transportation grant 


applicants to describe innovative project delivery methods for proposed projects. 


Additionally, DOT is interested in projects that apply innovative strategies to 


improve the efficiency of project development or expedite project delivery by using 


FHWA’s Special Experimental Project No. 14 (SEP-14) and Special Experimental 


Project No. 15 (SEP-15).  Under SEP-14 and SEP-15, FHWA may waive statutory and 


regulatory requirements under title 23 on a project-by-project basis to explore innovative 







 
 


PAGE 36  


processes that could be adopted through legislation. This experimental authority is 


available to test changes that would improve the efficiency of project delivery in a 


manner that is consistent with the purposes underlying existing requirements; it is not 


available to frustrate the purposes of existing requirements. 


When making BUILD Transportation grant award decisions, the Department will 


consider the applicant’s proposals to use SEP-14 or SEP-15, whether the proposals are 


consistent with the objectives and requirements of those programs, the potential benefits 


that experimental authorities or waivers might provide to the project, and the broader 


applicability of potential results.  The Department is not replacing the application 


processes for SEP–14 or SEP–15 with this notice or the BUILD Transportation grant 


program application. Instead, it seeks detailed expressions of interest in those programs. 


If selected for an BUILD Transportation grant award, the applicant would need to satisfy 


the relevant programs’ requirements and complete the appropriate application processes.  


Selection for a BUILD Transportation grant award does not mean a project’s SEP-14 or 


SEP-15 proposal has been approved. The Department will make a separate determination 


in accordance with those programs’ processes on the appropriateness of a waiver. 


(iii) Innovative Financing 


DOT will assess the extent to which the project incorporates innovations in 


transportation funding and finance through both traditional and innovative means, 


including by using private sector funding or financing and recycled revenue from the 


competitive sale or lease of publicly owned or operated assets.  







 
 


PAGE 37  


(b) Partnership  


 The Department will consider the extent to which projects demonstrate strong 


collaboration among a broad range of stakeholders.  Projects with strong partnership 


typically involve multiple partners in project development and funding, such as State and 


local governments, other public entities, and private or nonprofit entities.  DOT will 


consider applicants that partner with State, local, or private entities for the completion 


and operation of transportation infrastructure to have strong partnership.  DOT will also 


assess the extent to which the project application demonstrates collaboration among 


neighboring or regional jurisdictions to achieve local or regional benefits.  In the context 


of public-private partnerships, DOT will assess the extent to which partners are 


encouraged to ensure long-term asset performance, such as through pay-for-success 


approaches.  


DOT will also consider the extent to which projects include partnerships that 


bring together diverse transportation agencies or are supported, financially or otherwise, 


by other stakeholders that are pursuing similar objectives.  For example, DOT will 


consider the extent to which transportation projects are coordinated with economic 


development, housing, water and waste infrastructure, power and electric infrastructure, 


broadband and land use plans and policies or other public service efforts.  


ii. Demonstrated Project Readiness 


During application evaluation, the Department may consider project readiness to 


assess the likelihood of a successful project.  In that analysis, the Department will 


consider significant risks to successful completion of a project, including risks associated 


with environmental review, permitting, technical feasibility, funding, and the applicant’s 







 
 


PAGE 38  


capacity to manage project delivery.  Risks do not disqualify projects from award, but 


competitive applications clearly and directly describe achievable risk mitigation 


strategies.  A project with mitigated risks or with a risk mitigation plan is more 


competitive than a comparable project with unaddressed risks. 


iii. Project Costs and Benefits 


The Department may consider the costs and benefits of projects seeking BUILD 


Transportation grant funding.  To the extent possible, the Department will rely on 


quantitative, data-supported analysis to assess how well a project addresses this criterion, 


including an assessment of the project’s estimated benefit-cost ratio and net quantifiable 


benefits based on the applicant-supplied BCA described in Section D.2.vi.   


iv. Additional Considerations  


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act requires the Department to consider 


contributions to geographic diversity among recipients, including the need for a balance 


between the needs of rural and urban communities when selecting BUILD Transportation 


grant awards.  


2. Review and Selection Process 


DOT reviews all eligible applications received by the deadline.  The BUILD 


Transportation grants review and selection process consists of at least Technical Review 


and Senior Review.  In the Technical Review, teams comprising staff from the Office of 


the Secretary (OST) and operating administrations review all eligible applications and 


rate projects based on how well the projects align with the selection criteria. The Senior 


Review Team, which includes senior leadership from OST and the operating 


administrations, determines which projects to advance to the Secretary as Highly Rated.  







 
 


PAGE 39  


The FY 2019 Appropriations Act mandated BUILD Transportation grant awards by 


November 12, 2019.  The Secretary selects from the Highly Rated projects for final 


awards. 


3. Additional Information 


Prior to award, each selected applicant will be subject to a risk assessment as required 


by 2 CFR § 200.205.  The Department must review and consider any information about 


the applicant that is in the designated integrity and performance system accessible 


through SAM (currently the Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity Information 


System (FAPIIS).  An applicant may review information in FAPIIS and comment on any 


information about itself.  The Department will consider comments by the applicant, in 


addition to the other information in FAPIIS, in making a judgment about the applicant's 


integrity, business ethics, and record of performance under Federal awards when 


completing the review of risk posed by applicants. 


F. Federal Award Administration Information 


1. Federal Award Notice  


Following the evaluation outlined in Section E, the Secretary will announce awarded 


projects by posting a list of selected projects at www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants. 


Notice of selection is not authorization to begin performance.  Following that 


announcement, the relevant operating administration will contact the point of contact 


listed in the SF 424 to initiate negotiation of the grant agreement for authorization.  


2. Administrative and National Policy Requirements  


All awards will be administered pursuant to the Uniform Administrative 


Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards found in 2 







 
 


PAGE 40  


C.F.R part 200, as adopted by DOT at 2 C.F.R part 1201.  Federal wage rate requirements 


included in subchapter IV of chapter 31 of title 40, U.S.C., apply to all projects receiving 


funds under this program, and apply to all parts of the project, whether funded with 


BUILD Transportation Grant funds, other Federal funds, or non-Federal funds.  


In connection with any program or activity conducted with or benefiting from funds 


awarded under this notice, recipients of funds must comply with all applicable 


requirements of Federal law, including, without limitation, the Constitution of the United 


States; the conditions of performance, non-discrimination requirements, and other 


assurances made applicable to the award of funds in accordance with regulations of the 


Department of Transportation; and applicable Federal financial assistance and contracting 


principles promulgated by the Office of Management and Budget.  In complying with 


these requirements, recipients, in particular, must ensure that no concession agreements 


are denied or other contracting decisions made on the basis of speech or other activities 


protected by the First Amendment.  If the Department determines that a recipient has 


failed to comply with applicable Federal requirements, the Department may terminate the 


award of funds and disallow previously incurred costs, requiring the recipient to 


reimburse any expended award funds. 


Additionally, applicable Federal laws, rules and regulations of the relevant operating 


administration administering the project will apply to the projects that receive BUILD 


Transportation grant awards, including planning requirements, Service Outcome 


Agreements, Stakeholder Agreements, Buy America compliance, and other requirements 


under DOT’s other highway, transit, rail, and port grant programs. In particular, 


Executive Order 13858 directs the Executive Branch Departments and agencies to 







 
 


PAGE 41  


maximize the use of goods, products, and materials produced in the United States through 


the terms and conditions of Federal financial assistance awards.  If selected for an award, 


grantees must be prepared to demonstrate how they will maximize the use of domestic 


goods, products, and materials in constructing their project   BUILD Transportation grant 


projects involving vehicle acquisition must involve only vehicles that comply with 


applicable Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards and Federal Motor Vehicle Safety 


Regulations, or vehicles that are exempt from Federal Motor Carrier Safety Standards or 


Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations in a manner that allows for the legal acquisition 


and deployment of the vehicle or vehicles. 


For projects administered by FHWA, applicable Federal laws, rules, and regulations 


set forth in Title 23 U.S.C. and Title 23 C.F.R apply, including the 23 U.S.C. 129 


restrictions on the use of toll revenues, and Section 4(f) preservation of parklands and 


historic properties requirements under 23 U.S.C. 138. .For an illustrative list of the other 


applicable laws, rules, regulations, executive orders, polices, guidelines, and 


requirements as they relate to a BUILD Transportation grant project administered by the 


FHWA, please see 


https://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/Freight/infrastructure/tiger/fy2016_gr_exhbt/index.htm  


For BUILD Transportation projects administered by the Federal Transit 


Administration and partially funded with Federal transit assistance, all relevant 


requirements under chapter 53 of title 49 U.S.C. apply.  For transit projects funded 


exclusively with BUILD Transportation grant funds, some requirements of chapter 53 of 


title 49 U.S.C. and chapter VI of title 49 C.F.R. apply. 







 
 


PAGE 42  


For projects administered by the Federal Railroad Administration, FRA requirements 


described in 49 U.S.C. Subtitle V, Part C apply.   


For each project that receives a BUILD Transportation grant award, the terms of the 


award will require the recipient to complete the project using at least the level of non-


Federal funding that was specified in the application. If the actual costs of the project are 


greater than the costs estimated in the application, the recipient will be responsible for 


increasing the non-Federal contribution. If the actual costs of the project are less than the 


costs estimated in the application, DOT will generally reduce the Federal contribution. 


3. Reporting  


i. Progress Reporting on Grant Activities  


Each applicant selected for BUILD Transportation grant funding must submit 


quarterly progress reports and Federal Financial Reports (SF-425) to monitor project 


progress and ensure accountability and financial transparency in the BUILD 


Transportation grant program.  


ii. System Performance Reporting  


Each applicant selected for BUILD Transportation grant funding must collect and 


report to the DOT information on the project’s performance.  The specific performance 


information and reporting time period will be determined on a project-by-project basis.  


Performance indicators will not include formal goals or targets, but will include observed 


measures under baseline (pre-project) as well as post-implementation outcomes, and will 


be used to evaluate and compare projects and monitor the results that grant funds achieve 


to the intended long-term outcomes of the BUILD Transportation grant program are 


achieved.  To the extent possible, performance indicators used in the reporting should 







 
 


PAGE 43  


align with the measures included in the application and should relate to at least one of the 


selection criteria defined in Section E.  Performance reporting continues for several years 


after project construction is completed, and DOT does not provide BUILD Transportation 


grant funding specifically for performance reporting. 


iii. Reporting of Matters Related to Recipient Integrity and 


Performance  


If the total value of a selected applicant’s currently active grants, cooperative 


agreements, and procurement contracts from all Federal awarding agencies exceeds 


$10,000,000 for any period of time during the period of performance of this Federal 


award, then the applicant during that period of time must maintain the currency of 


information reported to the SAM that is made available in the designated integrity and 


performance system (currently FAPIIS) about civil, criminal, or administrative 


proceedings described in paragraph 2 of this award term and condition.  This is a 


statutory requirement under section 872 of Public Law 110-417, as amended (41 U.S.C. 


2313).  As required by section 3010 of Public Law 111-212, all information posted in the 


designated integrity and performance system on or after April 15, 2011, except past 


performance reviews required for Federal procurement contracts, will be publicly 


available. 


G. Federal Awarding Agency Contacts 


For further information concerning this notice please contact the BUILD 


Transportation  grant program staff via e-mail at BUILDgrants@dot.gov, or call Howard 


Hill at 202-366-0301.  A TDD is available for individuals who are deaf or hard of hearing 


at 202-366-3993.  In addition, DOT will post answers to questions and requests for 







 
 


PAGE 44  


clarifications on DOT’s website at www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants.  To ensure 


applicants receive accurate information about eligibility or the program, the applicant is 


encouraged to contact DOT directly, rather than through intermediaries or third parties, 


with questions.  DOT staff may also conduct briefings on the BUILD Transportation 


grant selection and award process upon request.   


H. Other information  


1. Protection of Confidential Business Information 


All information submitted as part of or in support of any application shall use publicly 


available data or data that can be made public and methodologies that are accepted by 


industry practice and standards, to the extent possible.  If the applicant submits 


information that the applicant considers to be a trade secret or confidential commercial or 


financial information, the applicant must provide that information in a separate 


document, which the applicant may cross-reference from the application narrative or 


other portions of the application. For the separate document containing confidential 


information, the applicant must do the following: (1) state on the cover of that document 


that it “Contains Confidential Business Information (CBI)”; (2) mark each page that 


contains confidential information with “CBI”; (3) highlight or otherwise denote the 


confidential content on each page; and (4) at the end of the document, explain how 


disclosure of the confidential information would cause substantial competitive harm.  


DOT will protect confidential information complying with these requirements to the 


extent required under applicable law.  If DOT receives a Freedom of Information Act 


(FOIA) request for the information that the applicant has marked in accordance with this 


section, DOT will follow the procedures described in its FOIA regulations at 49 C.F.R. § 







 
 


PAGE 45  


7.29.  Only information that is in the separate document, marked in accordance with this 


section, and ultimately determined to be confidential under § 7.29 will be exempt from 


disclosure under FOIA. 


2. Publication/Sharing of Application Information  


Following the completion of the selection process and announcement of awards, 


the Department intends to publish a list of all applications received along with the names 


of the applicant organizations and funding amounts requested. Except for the information 


properly marked as described in Section H.1., the Department may make application 


narratives publicly available or share application information within the Department or 


with other Federal agencies if the Department determines that sharing is relevant to the 


respective program’s objectives.  


3. Department Feedback on Applications 


The Department strives to provide as much information as possible to assist 


applicants with the application process.  The Department will not review applications in 


advance, but Department staff are available for technical questions and assistance.  To 


efficiently use Department resources, the Department will prioritize interactions with 


applicants who have not already received a debrief on their FY 2018 BUILD 


Transportation grant application.  Program staff will address questions to 


BUILDgrants@dot.gov throughout the application period. Department staff will make 


reasonable efforts to schedule meetings on projects through May 31, 2019. After that 


date, Department staff will schedule meetings only to the extent possible and consistent 


with timely completion of other activities.    











awards available for planning grants. However the NOFO indicates such grants will be evaluated against the same criteria as capital grant applications and that
USDOT “will prioritize FY 2019 BUILD Transportation grant program funding for projects that propose to move into the construction phase within the period of
obligation.” Because of this, USDOT reports that “applications for BUILD Transportation planning grants will be less competitive than capital grants.”
 
Funding

•                     Per the FY2019 appropriations law, $900 million is available to be awarded for investments in surface transportation infrastructure.
•                     There should be a 50-50 split between rural and urban grants.
•                     No more than 10% of funding may be awarded for projects in a single state.
•                     The maximum grant size is $25 million. For a project in a rural area, the minimum grant award is $1 million; in non-rural areas the minimum grant

award is $5 million. There is no minimum award size for planning grants.
•                     The definitions of rural and urban differ from previous rounds:

Urban: a project is designated as urban if located within/on the boundary of a Census-designated urbanized area with a population greater than
200,000.
Rural: a project located outside a Census-designated urbanized area with a population greater than 200,000.
A project that is in both an urban and rural area will be designated as urban if the majority of costs will be spent in urban areas and will be
designated as rural if the majority of costs will be spent in rural areas.

•                     For a project located in a rural area, the Federal share may be increased above 80%.
•                     Previously incurred costs or previously expended or encumbered funds will not be considered toward the matching requirement.
•                     While the FY18 NOFO indicated that toll credits are a non-federal source, this NOFO indicates that they are only a non-federal source if “repaid

from non-federal sources.”
 
Applicants

•                     As in past rounds, eligible applicants include State, local, and tribal governments, including U.S. territories, transit agencies, port authorities,
metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs), and other political subdivisions of State or local governments.

•                     Lead applicants may submit up to three applications; unrelated projects cannot be bundled into a single application.
 
Criteria
Per the FY19 omnibus, the selection criteria for awards under this round must remain the same as the FY17 NOFO. USDOT has met this requirement by
maintaining the same criteria but has updated their descriptions – with some changes being minor and others more substantial.

•                     Primary Selection Criteria:
Safety: this remains the same as the FY17 NOFO and focuses on how the project will improve safety outcomes within the project area or wider
transportation network;
State of Good Repair: in addition to improving the condition or resilience of existing transportation facilities and systems as was considered
under the FY17 NOFO, this NOFO also takes into consideration “if the project will contribute to a state of good repair of transportation
infrastructure that supports border security”;
Economic Competitiveness: this remains largely the same as the FY17 NOFO, focusing on the project’s expected impacts on the movement of
goods and people as well as connectivity to the national and global economy. Differing from the FY17 NOFO, this round asks applicants to
describe the extent to which the project “promotes the expansion of private economic developing including in Opportunity Zones.” Opportunity
Zones were created by the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in 2017 and are defined as “an economically-distressed community where new investments,
under certain conditions, may be eligible for preferential tax treatment.” More information on these Zones can be found here;
Environmental Sustainability: this is the same as the FY17 NOFO and focuses on how the project will provide environmental improvements; and
Quality of Life: this is largely the same as the FY17 NOFO but adds in a request that the applicant provide information on if the project will allow
for concurrent installation of fiber or other broadband deployment.

•                     Secondary Selection Criteria
Innovation: this criterion differs substantially from the FY17 NOFO and instead closely resembles the description used in the FY18 NOFO,
focusing on the use of innovative strategies such as innovative technology, innovative project delivery, and innovative financing. Additionally,
this NOFO includes more specific guidance for projects proposing to deploy autonomous vehicles.
Partnership: similar to the FY17 NOFO and focuses on if the project demonstrates strong collaboration among a broad range of stakeholders in
both project development and funding, including other Federal entities as well as private entities.

 
Review and Selection Process
While the FY17 process was broken into three steps (Technical Review, Tier Two Analysis, and Senior Review), the FY19 process only has two: Technical
Review and Senior Review. Projects designated as “Highly Rated” after these reviews will be sent to the Secretary for final selection.
 
Also differing from previous rounds, this NOFO includes a section discussing the sharing of application information, noting that USDOT plans to publish a list
of all applications along with the names of the application organizations and funding request. Additionally, USDOT indicates that, except for designated
confidential information, it may make application narratives publicly available.
 
The NOFO indicates that USDOT staff will answer application questions through the email address BUILDGrants@dot.gov and will “make reasonable efforts to
schedule meetings on projects through May 31, 2019.”  
 
BUILD Webinars:
USDOT will host five webinars on the BUILD program:

1. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – All Applicants
a. Tuesday, April 30, 3-5pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8

2. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – Tribal and Rural Applicants
a. Thursday, May 2, 2-4pm Eastern

https://www.irs.gov/newsroom/opportunity-zones-frequently-asked-questions
mailto:BUILDGrants@dot.gov
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221628593&_charset_=utf-8


b. Register here:
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8

3. Preparing a Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for a BUILD Application
a. Tuesday, May 7, 2-4pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8

4. How to Compete for BUILD Transportation Grants – All Applicants
a. Thursday, May 9, 2-4pm Eastern
b. Register here:

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8

5. Preparing a Benefit Cost Analysis (BCA) for a BUILD Application
a. Tuesday, May 14, 305pm Eastern
b. Register here: h

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?
sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8

More details about these webinars can be found online here: https://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/outreach
 
Thank you,
 
Katie Cross
Manager, Member Communications & Policy
 
Coalition for America’s Gateways and Trade Corridors
1625 K Street NW
Suite 1100
Washington, DC 20006
tradecorridors.org
Office: (202) 828-9100
Cell: (202) 679-7707

SAVE THE DATE - 2019 CAGTC Annual Meeting - May 14 & 15  in Washington, DC

 

https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221599637&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221619491&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221629189&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8
https://connectdotcqpub1.connectsolutions.com/content/connect/c1/7/en/events/event/private/1111229023/1135024841/event_landing.html?sco-id=1221635893&_charset_=utf-8
https://www.transportation.gov/BUILDgrants/outreach


 
 

 
 

TAB 4c 
FSTED Grant 

  



FSTED Timeline 2020-2021 

Opening date Closing Date Task Responsible Parties 
May 7, 2019 Tuesday June 18, 2019 Tuesday FSTED Program Project 

Application Cycle Opens 
Individual Florida Ports  

May 7, 2019 June 18, 2019 Review FSTED 
applications for 
consistency with Section 
311 F.S. 

FSTED Staff 

August 5, 2019 
 

Letters of consistency to  
FSTED staff from 
agencies  

DEO & DOT 

August 13, 2019 FSTED Meeting packets 
posted to public website 

FSTED Staff 

August 27, 2019 FSTED project 
allocations  

FSTED Council 

 

Due to revisions of SeaCIP there will be no carry forward applications from previous years.  New 
applications will be needed for all FSTED funding requests for FY 2020-2021.  



 
 
 

TAB 4d 
DEO Grants 

  



From: Casey Grigsby
Bcc:

Subject: DEO Grant NOFO"s
Date: Tuesday, April 30, 2019 1:17:00 PM
Attachments: image005.png

Good afternoon,
 
The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) has released two grant notices that are
listed below. If you have any questions, concerns, or would like assistance in coordinating with DEO
to apply for these grants please let me know.
 
Community Planning Technical Assistance Grants
The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) anticipates that the Florida Legislature will
appropriate funding for Community Planning Technical Assistance Grants. The grants provide
communities the opportunity to develop innovative planning and development strategies to promote a
diverse economy, vibrant rural and suburban areas and meet the requirements of the Community
Planning Act, while protecting environmentally sensitive areas. The grants can also be used for disaster
recovery or resiliency planning and economic development by communities impacted by Hurricanes
Irma and Michael. DEO’s Bureau of Community Planning and Growth is soliciting technical
assistance grant requests for state fiscal year (FY) 2018-2019.
 
Projects are developed by the county, municipality or regional planning council and generally relate to
community planning and economic development strategies that implement the requirements in the
Community Planning Act. Communities impacted by Hurricanes Irma and Michael are encouraged to
apply for projects related to disaster recovery or resiliency. Applicants are encouraged to seek funding
for innovative, creative or unique approaches to planning and development. Grant awards typically
range from $25,000 to $40,000, but award amounts may vary.
 
DEO asks that requests for grant funding be received by DEO on or before Monday, May 13, 2019,
at 11:59 p.m.
 
Competitive Florida Partnership Grant
The Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) anticipates that the Florida Legislature will
appropriate funding for Competitive Florida Partnership Grants.  Funding assists local governments
pursuing asset-based economic development through innovative planning and development strategies.
DEO will offer grant funding and technical assistance to help communities plan for and implement an
economic development strategy using the Competitive Florida Partnership model. For more
information visit the Florida Competitive Partnership page.
 

mailto:Alindecamp@portmanatee.com
mailto:aking@portpanamacityusa.com
mailto:MatosA@stlucieco.org
mailto:MatosA@stlucieco.org
mailto:alcu@miamidade.gov
mailto:AMiller@cityofpensacola.com
mailto:Basil.Binns@miamidade.gov
mailto:rebecca.dicks@jaxport.com
mailto:Becky.Hope@miamidade.gov
mailto:Becky.Hope@miamidade.gov
mailto:Beth.McCague@jaxport.com
mailto:cbuqueras@portmanatee.com
mailto:Casey.Grigsby@FlaPorts.org
mailto:Casey.Grigsby@FlaPorts.org
mailto:christy.gandy@flaports.org
mailto:cmerritt@cityofpensacola.com
mailto:ctaylor@portcanaveral.com
mailto:dowens@miamidade.gov
mailto:dsanford@portmanatee.com
mailto:David.Wirth@stpete.org
mailto:danderton@broward.org
mailto:denise@portmanatee.com
mailto:denise@portmanatee.com
mailto:DLuensmann@portcanaveral.com
mailto:dbradshaw@cityofkeywest-fl.gov
mailto:doug@flaports.org
mailto:eric.green@jaxport.com
mailto:Frederick.Wong@jaxport.com
mailto:gwiltshire@broward.org
mailto:gwiltshire@broward.org
mailto:gmagidson@portofportstjoe.com
mailto:hydi.webb@miamidade.gov
mailto:jparmentier@portcanaveral.com
mailto:jessie.werner@flaports.org
mailto:jessie.werner@flaports.org
mailto:Jill.Mashburn@jaxport.com
mailto:jpyburn@broward.org
mailto:jmurray@portcanaveral.com
mailto:jmurray@portcanaveral.com
mailto:juk@miamidade.gov
mailto:Justin.Damiano@jaxport.com
mailto:kemery@portofpalmbeach.com
mailto:kwynneroberts@broward.org
mailto:kwynneroberts@broward.org
mailto:crocek@stlucieco.org
mailto:laura@nassauflorida.com
mailto:laura@nassauflorida.com
mailto:almira@portofpalmbeach.com
mailto:MPoole@portcanaveral.com
mailto:MPoole@portcanaveral.com
mailto:mike.rubin@flaports.org
mailto:pposton@portcanaveral.com
mailto:panderson@tampaport.com
mailto:panderson@tampaport.com
mailto:pbuchan@broward.org
mailto:rkancharla@tampaport.com
mailto:rkancharla@tampaport.com
mailto:Randy.Oliver@citrusbocc.com
mailto:rdevill@miamidade.gov
mailto:staceyj@miamidade.gov
mailto:paynes@stlucieco.org
mailto:tdaugherty@portmanatee.com
mailto:tdaugherty@portmanatee.com
mailto:tmoore@tampaport.com
mailto:tkrutz@portcanaveral.com
mailto:wstubbs@portpanamacityusa.com
mailto:wstubbs@portpanamacityusa.com
http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/programs/community-planning-table-of-contents/technical-assistance/community-planning-technical-assistance-grant
http://www.floridajobs.org/community-planning-and-development/programs/community-planning-table-of-contents/competitive-florida-partnership/competitive-florida-partnership-grant






Competitive Florida Partnership grants work best when conducted at the community level. Program
grants are available to counties, municipalities, and Regional Planning Councils on behalf of counties,
municipalities and communities. Grant awards will highlight rural and small communities. Rural areas
may include a rural municipality in an urban county. Grant awards are $40,000.
 
Applicant shall submit requests for grant funding to DEO on or before Friday, May 24, 2019, at
11:59 p.m.
 
Thank you so much and have a great day.
 
Casey Erin Grigsby
Vice President of Programs & Planning
Casey.Grigsby@FlaPorts.org
Cell:  352-210-0121
Office: 850-222-8028
502 East Jefferson Street 
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
www.flaports.org

 
Find us on Twitter and Facebook:

  
 
 

mailto:Casey.Grigsby@FlaPorts.org
http://www.flaports.org/
http://twitter.com/#!/FloridaPorts
https://www.facebook.com/flaports


 
 
 

TAB 5 
Legislative Report 

 
 
 
 

  



 
 
 

TAB 6 
Other Issues 

  



 
 
 

TAB 6a 
Mutual Aid Agreements 

  



MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the mutual commitments given herein, each of the Signatories to this Mutual Aid 
Agreement agrees to render aid to any of the other Signatories as follows: 

 
1. Request for aid. The Requesting Signatory agrees to make its request in writing to the Aiding 

Signatory within a reasonable time after aid is needed and with reasonable specificity. The 
Requesting Signatory agrees to compensate the Aiding Signatory as specified in this Agreement and 
in other agreements that may be in effect between the Requesting and Aiding Signatories. 

 
2. Discretionary rendering of aid. Rendering of aid is entirely at the discretion of the Aiding Signatory. 

The agreement to render aid is expressly not contingent upon a declaration of a major disaster or 
emergency by the federal government or upon receiving federal funds. 

 
3. Invoice to the Requesting Signatory. Within 90 days of the return to the home work station of all labor 

and equipment of the Aiding Signatory, the Aiding Signatory shall submit to the Requesting 
Signatory an invoice of all charges related to the aid provided pursuant to this Agreement. The 
invoice shall contain only charges related to the aid provided pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
4. Charges to the Requesting Signatory. Charges to the Requesting Signatory from the Aiding Signatory 

shall be as follows: 
a. Labor force. Charges for labor force shall be in accordance with the Aiding Signatory's 

standard practices. 
b. Equipment. Charges for equipment, such as bucket trucks, digger derricks, and other special 

equipment used by the Aiding Signatory, shall be at the reasonable and customary rates for 
such equipment in the Aiding Signatory's location. 

c. Transportation. The Aiding Signatory shall transport needed personnel and equipment by 
reasonable and customary means and shall charge reasonable and customary rates for such 
transportation. 

d. Meals, lodging and other related expenses. Charges for meals, lodging and other expenses 
related to the provision of aid pursuant to this Agreement shall be the reasonable and actual 
costs incurred by the Aiding Signatory. 

 
5. Counterparts. The Signatories may execute this Mutual Aid Agreement in one or more counterparts, 

with each counterpart being deemed an original Agreement, but with all counterparts being 
considered one Agreement. 

 
6. Execution. Each party hereto has read, agreed to and executed this Mutual Aid Agreement on the date 

indicated. 
 

Date    Entity (name/ state) 

By (please print) 

Title      
 
 



Page 1 of 7 
 

Florida Ports Council 

Mutual Aid Agreement 

 

This Mutual Aid and Interlocal Assistance Agreement (this “Agreement” is made and entered 
into as of the ____ day of ______________, 2019 (Effective Date).  

This is a mutual effort of each of the entities listed on the index of participants by and through 
their signatory trade associations or as individual signatories to this Agreement (each being a 
“Participant”). 

 The Participants have established and implemented an effective process by which each 
may receive or provide for the provision of personnel and equipment to assist in the restoration 
of facilities and systems after disruption or damage due to weather events, equipment 
malfunctions, accidents, sabotage, or other events in which assistance is requested (“Mutual 
Aid Assistance”).  

 The purpose of this Agreement is to strengthen the provision of Mutual Aid Assistance 
on a statewide basis among the ports industry in Florida. The parties to this Agreement are 
committed to provide for the greater effectiveness and strength of Mutual Aid Assistance for the 
benefit of Florida’s residents, as described in this Agreement. 

WHEREAS, it is the purpose and intent of this Agreement, the Parties, and Section 163 .01, 
Florida Statutes, known and referred to as the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act ("Cooperation 
Act"), to permit and authorize the Parties to enter into this Agreement to facilitate and encourage 
assistance among the Parties to prepare for and respond to emergencies; and, 

WHEREAS, it is the purpose of the Cooperation Act to provide a means by which the Parties 
may exercise their respective powers, privileges and authority which they may have separately, 
but which pursuant to this Agreement and the Cooperation Act they may exercise collectively; 
and, 

WHEREAS, in the event of an emergency, as defined herein, or training for such an event, any 
Party to this Agreement may need assistance in the form of supplemental equipment, supplies, 
docks, mooring areas, facilities, or other support; and 

WHEREAS, each Party owns equipment, supplies, docks, mooring areas, and facilities and is 
willing, subject to and in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, provide its equipment, 
supplies, docks, mooring areas, facilities, or other support to other Parties as provided herein; 
and 

WHEREAS, each Party has the authority pursuant to the Cooperation Act and its respective 
enabling legislation or charter to enter into this Agreement to provide mutual aid to each other in 
the event of an emergency. 



Page 2 of 7 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set 
forth, each undersigned Party agrees as follows: 

1. Purpose. The purpose of this agreement is to provide the terms and conditions under 
which the Parties will provide assistance ad make their equipment, supplies, docks, 
mooring areas, facilities, or other support available to other Parties in the event of an 
emergency, as defined herein, or training for such an event in accordance with the terms 
of this Agreement.  

2. Definitions. The following definitions shall be used in this agreement:  
a. Asset: means anything that has value provided by a party. Asset may include, 

but are not limited to, any physical asset such as equipment, disposable 
supplies, docks, mooring areas, facilities, or other support provided in support of 
an Event.  

b. Assistance: means the provision of Assets in support of an Event. 
c. Assistance Costs: means the usual and customary expenses incurred by a 

Provider in providing Assistance.  
d. Designated Representatives: shall be identified and designated representative 

by each Party to serve as the representatives of their respective Party in any 
meeting to coordinate the implementation of this Agreement.  

e. Emergency: means unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of a Party that 
either: (a) present a real, immediate threat to the proper performance of essential 
functions; or (b) will likely result in material loss or damage to property, bodily 
injury, or loss of life if immediate action is not taken. The term “Emergency” 
includes, but is not limited to, any human-caused or natural event or 
circumstance which requires immediate action to preserve public health, protect 
life, public property, and which circumstance is causing or threatening loss of life, 
damage to the environment, injury to person or property, human suffering or 
financial loss, such as: fire, explosion, flood, severe weather, drought, 
earthquake, volcanic activity, spills or releases of hazardous materials, 
contamination, utility or transportation emergencies, disease, infestation, civil 
disturbance, riots, acts of terrorism or sabotage.  

f. Event: refers to an incident, emergency, disaster, training, drill or exercise which 
causes a Recipient to request assistance from a Provider under this Agreement.  

g. Provider: means a Party who has subscribed to this Agreement and has agreed 
to deliver Assistance to another Party pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  

h. Recipient: means a Party that has executed this Agreement and has made a 
request for Assistance has received commitment(s) for Assistance pursuant to 
the terms of this Agreement. 

3. Participation. Participation in providing Assistance to a Party pursuant to this 
Agreement is purely voluntary. The execution of this Agreement in and of itself creates 
no legal obligation of a Party to provide any Assets; however, if any Assets are provided 
the terms and conditions of this Agreement will apply to such action.  



Page 3 of 7 
 

a. No Party shall be liable to another Party for, or be considered to be in breach of, 
or default under this Agreement on account of any delay in or failure to provide 
Assistance under this Agreement. 

b. Each Party is encouraged to provide the other parties with an updated list each 
year listing emergency contact information for such Party and available Assets 
which such Party will make available to the other Parties during the Event.  

4. Designated Representative. Each Party shall identify its Designated Representative 
and inform the other Parties in writing of any change to the Designated Representative 
who shall serve on behalf of their respective Party to discuss implementation and/or 
amendment of this Agreement. The Designated Representative may be changed by a 
Party at any time. Such change shall be communicated to the other Parties in 
accordance with section 21 of this Agreement.  

5. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
shall remain in effect for twenty-five (25) years unless rescinded by all Parties. A Party 
opting to withdraw from this Agreement shall provide written withdrawal notification to 
the Designated Representatives of the other Parties. Notice of the withdrawal becomes 
effective upon the date specified in the Party’s written withdrawal. Any withdrawing Party 
shall remain liable for all obligation incurred during its period of participation, until the 
obligation is satisfied.  

6. Payments for Services and Assistance. Recipient shall pay the provider for all 
customary, usual, commercially reasonable and invoiced Assistance Costs within sixty 
(60) days of receipt of the Providers invoice, for the assistance provided by the Provider. 
In the event the Provider provides equipment, supplies or parts, the Provider shall have 
the option to accept payment of cash or in kind for the equipment supplies or parts 
supplied.  

7. Independent Entity. Provider shall be and operate as an independent entity in the 
performance of any Assistance. Employees of Provider shall, at all times while providing 
assistance, continue to be employee of Provider and shall not be deemed employees of 
Recipient or “loaned servants” to Recipient for any purpose. Provider shall be solely 
responsible for payment of its employees’ wages, any required payroll taxes and any 
benefits or other compensation. Recipient shall not be responsible for paying any wages, 
any required payroll taxes and any benefits or other compensation directly to the 
Providers employees. In no event shall Provider or its officers, employees, agents, or 
representatives be authorized ( or represent that they are authorized) to make any 
representation, enter into any agreement, waive any right or incur any obligation in the 
name of, on behalf of, or as agent for Recipient under by virtue of this Agreement.  

8. Requests for Assistance. A Party may request Assistance from other Parties for an 
Event. In the event of an Emergency, a request for Assistance may be made verbally 
followed up with a written request as soon as practical. The Provider shall give verbal 
approval of the request to the requesting Party. Provider shall follow up any verbal 
approval with written approval as soon as practical. The extent to which the Provider 
provides any Assistance shall be at the Provider’s sole discretion.  

9. General Nature of Assistance. Assistance may be in the form of resources, such as 
equipment, supplies, and facilities such as docks, mooring areas, warehouses, and 



Page 4 of 7 
 

terminal areas. The execution of the Agreement shall not create any duty to respond on 
the part of any Party. A Party has the absolute discretion to decline to provide any 
requested Assistance and to withdraw Assets it has provided at any time without 
incurring liability. The Parties may separately agree on reimbursement and terms of 
exchange for Assets in each Event. The Parties hereto recognize that time is critical 
during Emergency and diligent efforts shall be made to respond to a request for 
resources as rapidly as possible, including any notification(s) that requested resources 
are not available. A Party maintains the option of submitting a request for assistance 
directly to local emergency management coordination organizations.  

10. Assistance. A Provider may provide assets, in its sole discretion, upon request of a 
Party. Unless mutually agree upon otherwise, the first eight (8) hours of use shall be 
without cost to the Recipient, after which use of equipment, such as construction 
equipment, vehicles, tools, pumps, motors, and other property (collectively referred to as 
“Personalty”) shall be at the Provider’s actual cost or at their current equipment rate. The 
provision of Personalty shall be subject to the following conditions: 

a. Personalty of a Provider shall continue under the command and control of the 
Provider, but shall be under the operation control of the appropriate officials 
within the incident management system of the Recipient.  

b. At the option of the Provider, Personalty may be loaned with an operator.  
c. Loaned Personalty shall be returned to the Provider as soon as reasonably 

possible after Recipients emergency or training needs end, or immediately upon 
the Recipient’s receipt of an oral or written notice from the Provider for the return 
of Personalty. When notified to return equipment to a Provider, the Recipient 
shall make every effort to return Personalty to the Providers possession within 
twenty-four (24) hours following receipt of notification from the Provider, and in 
good operating condition.  

d. Recipient shall, at its own expense, provide any consumable supplies needed to 
operate the Personalty unless mutually agreed upon otherwise. The Recipient 
shall take proper precaution in its operation, storage, and maintenance of 
Providers Personalty. Parties are responsible to ensure that Personalty shall be 
used only by properly trained and supervised operators. Providers shall endeavor 
to provide Personality in good working order, they will be provided “as is”, with no 
representation or warranties as to fitness for particular purposes.  

e. Provider’s cost related to the transportation, handling, and loading/unloading of 
Personalty, even within the initial eight (8) hour period shall be borne by the 
Recipient unless mutually agreed upon otherwise. Provider shall provide copies 
of invoices for such charges and shall provide hourly accounting of charges for 
Provider’s employees who perform such services.  

f. Without effecting the Provider’s right to indemnification s provided in this 
Agreement and even within the initial eight (8) hour period, in the event loaned 
Personalty is lost or damaged while in the custody and use of the Recipient, or 
while being returned to the Provider, the Recipient shall promptly reimburse the 
Provider for the reasonable cost of repairing or replacing said damage.  



Page 5 of 7 
 

11. Exchange of Materials and Supplies. Recipient shall reimburse Provider in kind or at 
Provider’s actual replacement cost for use of partially consumed or non-returnable 
materials and supplies, as mutually agreed between Recipient and Provider. Reusable 
materials and supplies which are returned (unused) to Provider in clean, damage-free 
condition shall not be charged to the Recipient.  

12. Indemnification and Limitation of Liability. Each Party agrees to be fully responsible 
for all claims arising out of its own acts of negligence or its respective employees’ acts of 
negligence when acting within the scope of their employment and agrees to be liable for 
any damages proximately caused thereby. However, that the Party’s liability is subject to 
the monetary limitations and defenses imposed by Section 768.28 F.S. Nothing herein is 
intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the Parties, nor shall anything 
herein be constructed as consent by the Parties to be used by any third party for any 
cause or matter arising out of or arising out of or related to this Agreement except to the 
extent provided by 768.28 F.S.  

a. No Party shall be liable to another Party for, or be considered to be in breach of 
or default under this Agreement on account of any delay on or failure to provide 
Assistance under this Agreement.  

b. The provisions of this section shall survive termination or expiration of this 
Agreement.  

c. To the extent permitted by any applicable insurance policy, Recipient expressly 
waives any subrogated claim against the Provider, which it may have on account 
of, or in connection with, the Provider providing assistance to the Recipient under 
this Agreement.  

13. Modifications. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, altered, or rescinded 
without affirmative concurrence of all Parties to this Agreement. Modifications to this 
Agreement must be in writing, approved by an affirmative vote, and signed by the 
Designated Representatives of each Party. Any Party which disagrees with the 
modification, alteration, or rescission, and any Party so choosing shall provide its intent 
to do so in writing to the Designated Representatives of the other Parties.  

14. Non-Exclusiveness and Prior Agreements. This Agreement is not intended to be 
exclusive among the parties. Any Party may enter into separate assistance agreements 
with any other entity. No such spate agreement shall terminate any responsibility under 
this Agreement. To the extent that prior agreements between Parties’ are inconsistent 
with this Agreement, prior agreements for assistance between the Parities shall 
supersede this Agreement, until and unless the inconsistency is reconciled by the 
affected Parties in writing.  

15. Governmental Authority. This Agreement is subject to laws, rules, regulations, orders, 
and other requirements, nor or as amended of all governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction over the events covered by this Agreement. A Party and its employees 
providing Assistance under this Agreement shall be entitled to all privileges and 
immunities from liabilities as are authorized by Section 768.28 F.S. and all other State or 
Federal laws. 

16. No Public Duty, Third Party Beneficiaries, Partnerships. No undertaking by one party 
to the other Party under any provision of this Agreement shall create any special duty to 

http://www.leg.state.fl.us/statutes/index.cfm?App_mode=Display_Statute&URL=0700-0799/0768/Sections/0768.28.html


Page 6 of 7 
 

the public or otherwise enhance or modify the obligation of the Party with regard to the 
public or any person.  

a. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any rights in or duties to 
any third party, nor any liability to or standard care with reference to any third 
party. This Agreement shall no confer any right, or remedy upon any person 
other than the Parties. This Agreement shall not release or discharge any 
obligation or liability of any third party to any Party.  

b. This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, 
joint venture, or partnership among the Parties or to impose any partnership 
obligation or liability upon any Party. Further, no Party shall have any authority or 
undertaking for or on behalf of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or 
to otherwise bind any other Party.  

17. No Successors and Assigns. This Agreement and the rights, liabilities, and obligations 
contained herein are not transferable or assignable, in whole or in part. 

18. Governing Law and Venue. This Agreement shall be interpreted, construed, and 
enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida. Any action which may arise 
out of this Agreement shall be brought in the circuit court of the State of Florida, within 
the County of the Providers jurisdiction.  

19. Waiver. Any waiver at any time by any Party of its rights with respect to this Agreement 
shall not constitute or be deemed a waiver with respect to any subsect default or other 
matter arising in connection with this Agreement. Any delay in asserting or enforcing any 
right, except those related to the statutes of limitations, shall not constitute or be deemed 
a waiver.  

20. Severability. Should a court of competent jurisdiction rule any portion, section, or 
subsection of this Agreement invalid or nullified, that fact shall not affect or invalidate any 
other portion, section, subsection; and all remaining portions, sections, or subsections 
shall remain in full force and effect.  

21. Notices. Any notice, demand, information, report, or item otherwise required, 
authorized, or provided for in this Agreement shall be given in writing and shall be 
deemed properly given if (i) delivered personally or (ii) sent by United States Mail, 
postage prepaid, to the Designated Representative for each Parties at the address 
stated for such Designated Representative (iii) emailed.  

22. Copies filed with Clerk of Circuit Court. Copies of this Agreement shall be filed with 
the clerk of the circuit court of each Parties County after execution.  

23. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and by email 
signatures with the same force and effect as if all original signatures were set forth in a 
single document.  
 
 

  



Page 7 of 7 
 

Date 
Entity (name/ state)  
By (please print)  
Title 
Designated Representative 



 
 
 

TAB 6b 
New Business  

 




